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Nortech Systems Inc. is a full-service electronics
manufacturing services (EMS) provider of wire
and cable assemblies, printed circuit board
assemblies, and higher-level complete box build
assemblies for a wide range of industries.
Markets served inciude medical, automotive,
defense, computer, commercial, recreational,
government, consumer, agriculture and oil and
gas. The company has manufacturing capabilities
and operating partners in the U.S., Asia and Latin
America. Nortech Systemns is traded on the NASDAQ
Stock Market under the symbol NSYS and appears
in most stock listings as “NorSys.”

VISION
“To be the best”

OUR PURPOSE

To be the preferred electronics manufacturing services
provider that builds long-term relationships and creates
value-added solutions for our customers.

OUR VALUES

Respect
Customer-Focused
Committed to Success
Sense of Urgency
Great Communication
No One Does It Alone
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To Our Shareholders

2006 was a successful year for Nortech Systems. in addition to topping the $100 miliion
revenue plateau with gains in both operating and net income, we achieved several key
milestones. We broadened our capabilities, streamlined our internal manufacturing systems
and processes, and continued to build strong relationships with our customers.

As we ook ahead to 2007, we will continue to pursue opportunities that will support our
mission to be the preferred electronics manufacturing services provider that builds
long-term relationships and creates value-added solutions for our customers. Specifically,
we will focus on several key strategies:

« Forging strong customer relationships
s Delivering profitable sales growth

* |mplementing lean manufacturing processes

We believe Nortech Systems will continue to grow, exceeding our industry's performance,
aided by our operational structure and hard-earned reputation for outstanding quality and
responsiveness. These strategic priorities will enable us to better serve our customers,
leverage our operations, increase profitability and build shareholder value.

Strong 2006 Results

For the 2006 fiscal year, we reported record net sales of $105.1 million, up 25 percent.
Operating income increased 25 percent, to $2.6 million, and net income grew 41 percent
to $1.3 million, or $0.49 per diluted common share.

Strong demand by our defense-industry customers fueled significant revenue expansion
in Aerospace Systems, contributing $10.7 million, or 51 percent, of our overall revenue
growth during 2006.

Last year our electronic assembly sales grew 27 percent, or $5.6 million, and our
commercial wire and cable sales increased 22 percent, or $4.6 million.

Our working capital increased $0.5 million to $12.7 million and we generated
$2.8 miilion of cash flow from operating activities. Shareholder equity grew 10 percent
to $18.3 million. Our overall financial fundamentals, our liquidity and our balance sheet
remain strong.




FOCUSED BRAND

We have strengthened our brand
image across our key markets with
an updated corporate logo and
new logos for our Aerospace
Systems and Intercon 1 brands.

A Nortech Systems

A‘ Aerospace Systems

A Division: of Nortech Sysisms

A
A Intercon1

A Division of Nortech Systeems

Strengthening Partnerships

We serve three primary markets — industrial, defense and medical — and
this diversity is a key contributor to our success.

We continue to emphasize our value-added services, such as design,
program and supply chain management, to strengthen our customer
relationships. In 2006, we developed customer-centric programs for the
medical imaging, semiconductor manufacturing and process controi
industries.

We've carved out a special niche in low-volume, high-mix production,
and have earned a solid reputation in our specialty areas.

Qur customer focus in 2007 must permeate every aspect of Nortech
Systemns — not just sales and customer service. While strengthening our
relationship with existing customers, we are alsc adding new customers
and targeting new markets that fit our business model.

Fueling Profitable Growth

in 2006, we expanded our production capabilities and took steps to
broaden our customer base.

Qur June 2006 purchase of a manufacturing facility in Blue Earth,
Minnesota, provided additional capacity to meet demand for our
Aerospace Systems operations, which focuses on specialized wire and
cable assemblies for defense applications. From this facility, we
support several military customers, including the building of cable
assemblies for communications systems inside up-armored Humvee
vehicles used by U.S. military around the world.

Our newest acquisition took place in February 2007, when we
purchased the Garner, lowa, operations of Suntron Corporation.
We acquired a solid management team, an experienced staff of
approximately 100 employees and a customer base that opens new
markets for our company, such as agriculture and oil and gas. We also
plan to leverage cross-selling opportunities.

Our new lowa facility focuses on printed circuit board assemblies and
higher-level complete box build assemblies for both industrial and
military applications. Much like Aerospace Systems, the Garner
operation specializes in ruggedized products meant to withstand
challenging environmental conditions.

Creating high-performance product solutions for extremely demanding
applications is just one of the differentiating factors distinguishing
Nortech Systems in the marketplace. Over the years we have developed
critical expertise and demonstrated strong technological leadership that
our customers value.




Streamlining Manufacturing

Increased sales volumes and ongoing operational leveraging helped offset continued high
costs for energy and many key commedities in 2006, For example, copper prices on
average climbed 75 percent last year.

To thrive in this challenging environment requires a focus on continuous improvement in
reducing our costs of goods sold. We continue to benchmark our performance and goals
against a cross section of EMS companies of various sizes.

As we enter 2007, we have launched a comprehensive lean manufacturing initiative aimed
at driving internal process improvements, lowering costs and increasing our net
profit. Similar to our successful ISO 9001 quality program, implementing “lean” across
multiple locations and operations requires a quantum leap in our internal mindset and
culture. Correspondingly, the benefits we expect to realize from this initiative will be
evident across all our facilities and processes.

During the first half of 2007, we will be implementing our first major lean initiative with
the consolidation of our strategic purchasing activities under one corporate umbrella. This
enables us to better leverage our volume and lower our cost of doing business.

Focusing on the Future

As we focus on these strategic initiatives — delivering value-added solutions to our
customers, supporting profitable growth and improving our internal processes -
we believe Nortech Systems will continue cur momentum with a goal of exceeding our industry
in performance.

| would like to thank and commend our talented Nortech Systems employees. Their continued
commitment and dedication fuels our success in delivering long-term value to our shareholders
and our customers. On behalf of all of them, we appreciate your ongoing support.

Sincerely,

s

Michael J. Degen
President & Chief Executive Officer
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FULL-SERVICE CAPABILITIES

Our design services strengthen our
partnerships with customers by
involving us earlier and better
leveraging the breadth of our services.

Our manufacturing services utilize
lean systems to help accelerate the
time-to-market for our customers and
increase our efficiency.

QOur testing and diagnostics capabilities
ensure superior product performance
and provide valued refurbishment
services.

Qur supply chain management expertise
and global manufacturing options
help reduce costs and improve our
responsiveness.
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DIVERSIFIED PRODUCT OFFERING
* Wire/Cable Assemblies

* Printed Circuit Board Assemblies

* Higher-Level Complete Box Build Assemblies



KEY MARKETS
* |ndustrial
* Defense
* Medical
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
Mail:  P.O. Box 64854
St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
Delivery: 161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075

Phone: (800) 468-9716 or (651) 450-4064
Fax: {651) 450-4033
E-mail: stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com

www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices

Legal Counsel

Bert M. Gross

7201 Metro Boulevard
Edina, MN 55439

Auditors

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

801 Nicollet Ave., 11th Floor, West Tower
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Directors and Officers
MICHAEL J. DEGEN
President, Chief Executive Officer & Director

MYRON KUNIN
Chairman & Director
Vice Chairman, Regis Corporation, Edina, MN

KENNETH LARSON

Independent Director

President & Chief Cperating Officer (retired)
Polaris Industries inc., Medina, MN

RICHARD W. PERKINS

Independent Director

President & Chief Executive Officer

Perkins Capital Management, Inc., Wayzata, MN

C. TRENT RILEY

Independent Director

President, Riley, Dettmann & Kelsey, L.L.C.
Minnetonka, MN

RICHARD G. WASIELEWSKI
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

GARRY M. ANDERLY
Senior Vice President, Corporate Finance &
Treasurer

KEITH A. PIEPER
Vice President, Operations

PETER L. KUCERA
Vice President, Corporate Quality

DONALD E. HORNE
Vice President, Global Supply Chain
Managernent

CURTIS J. STEICHEN
Vice President, Sales & Marketing

ELECTRONIC ASSEMBLY

12136 Crystal Lake Road
Merrifield, MN 56465

For additional information about Nortech
Systems, please contact:

Michael J. Degen

President & Chief Executive Officer
Nortech Systems Incorporated

1120 Wayzata Boulevard East, Suite 201
Wayzata, MN 55391

{952) 345-2244

www.nortechsys.com

7746 Goedderz Road, Suite 100
Baxter, MN 56425

325 North Siate Street
Garner, |[A 50438

Nortech Systems’ Headquarters Operating Partner

Nortech Systems Incorporated
1120 Wayzata Boulevard East, Suite 201
Wayzata, MN 55391

Shenzhen, China

Nortech Systems’

Manufacturing and Service Locations
COMMERCIAL WIRE PRODUCTS
4050 Norris Court N.W.

Bemidji, MN 56601

750 Industrial Drive
Augusta, Wl 54722

Avenida E 541, Parque Industrial Martel
Apodaca, Nuevo Lebn 66634 Mexico

intercon 1
7746 Goedderz Road, Suite 110
Baxter, MN 56425

DEFENSE/AEROSPACE SYSTEMS
1930 West 1st Street
Blue Earth, MN 56013

1007 East 10th Street
Fairmont, MN 56031

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. on May 9, 2007, at the Wayzata Country Ciub, 200 West Wayzata
Boulevard, Wayzata, Minnesota.

A Form 10-K, notice of annual meeting of shareholders, proxy statement and form of proxy are enclosed with this report. The comparative
stock price performance graph is located immediately behind the Form 10-K.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIQN

Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHA

1934
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes 0 No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15{d} of the Act.
Yes [0 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
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The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, based on the closing price of $7.20
per share, was $8,591,522 on June 30, 2006.

Shares of comman stock outstanding at March 6, 2007: 2,714,729,
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents are incorporated by reference to the parts indicated of the Annual Report on Form 10-K:
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Reference is made to the Registrant’s proxy statements to be used in connection with the
2006 Annual Shareholders' Meeting and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionno

later than April 30, 2007

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank)
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NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
FORM 10-K
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We are a Minnesota corporation organized in
December 1390, filing annual reports, quarterly reports,
proxy statements, and other documents with the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act). Prior to
December 1990, we operated as DSC Nortech, Inc., who
filed a petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code during 1990. The
business and assets of DSC Nortech, Inc. were transferred
to us during 1990.

The public may read and copy any materials that we
file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at
340 Fifth Street N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Also, the
SEC maintains an Internet website that contains reports,
proxy and information statements, and other informaticn
regarding issuers, including us, who file electronically with
the SEC. The public can obtain any documents that we file
with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

We make available free of charge through our Internet
website (http://www.nortechsys.com) our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Press
Releases, and Current Reports on Form 8-K.

GENERAL

We are an EMS (Electronic Manufacturing Service)
contract manufacturing company with our headquarters in
Wayzata, Minnesota, a suburb of Minneapolis, Minnesota.
We maintain manufacturing facilities in Minnesota
including Bemidji, Fairmont, Biue Earth, Baxter, and
Merrifield as well as Augusta, Wisconsin, and Monterrey,
Mexico. On February 4, 2007, we acquired a
manufacturing operation in Garner, lowa. We manufacture
wire harness and cable assemblies, electronic sub-
assemblies, and printed circuit board assemblies. We
provide value added services and technical support
including design, testing, prototyping and supply chain
management. The vast majority of our revenue is derived
from products built to the customer’s design
specifications.

We provide a high degree of manufacturing expertise
using statistical process controls to ensure product quality,
total supply chain solution technigues and the systems

necessary to effectively manage the business. This level of
sophistication enables us to attract major original
equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and toc expand and
diversify our customer base. Our strategy is to develop a
customer base across several markets to avoid the effects
of fluctuations within a given industry. The markets we
serve are industrial Equipment, Medical, Military/Defense
and Transportation.

We believe the current growth and expansion trends
for contract manufacturing and the EMS (Electronic
Manufacturing Services) industry will continue both in the
United States and overseas. OEM outsourcing will
continue to escalate as more companies focus their
investments on marketing and development of their
preducts and rely more on EMS providers for their
production and supply chain requirements.

ACQUISITIONS

On February 4, 2007, we acquired the business
assets of Suntron Corporation’s Mid-West Operation
located in Garner, lowa. This acquisition will strengthen
our capabilities in printed circuit board assemblies and
high level complete box build assemblies while opening
new market segments in the agriculture and oil and gas
industries

On June 28, 2006, we acquired a 140,000 square
foot building in Blue Earth, Minnesota from Telex
Communications, Inc. This acquisition expanded our
capacity allowing us to better meet the needs of the
growing Military/Defense market.

On June 23, 2004, we acquired all of the business
assets of Zachariah and Lundbergh, Inc. (Z&L). This
acquisition of assets allows for further expansion of our
InterconOne brand of specialty cable and power supplies
for use in industrial and medical grade video cameras and
ancillary equipment.

See Notes 4 and 13 to the consclidated financial
statements for further information on these acquisitions.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

All of our operations fall under the Contract
Manufacturing segment within the Electronic
Manufacturing Services industry. We strategically direct
production amongst our various manufacturing facilities
based on a number of considerations to best meet our
customers’ requirements,




BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Electronic Manufacturing Services industry
continues to evolve into a dynamic, higher tech global
electronics contract services industry. We continue to
expand our capabilities to better meet these changing
market requirements. Along with offering technical
expertise in our quality processes, design, applications and
testing, we are also increasing our focus on supplier-
managed inventory services and the cost drivers
throughout the supply chain. We continue to expand our
international operations and partnerships to take
advantage of lower-cost alternatives for our customers and
to remain competitive in the marketplace when required.

We continue to pursue acquisitions, mergers, and/or
joint ventures of companies in the EMS industries to both
remain competitive and grow our customer and revenue
base. Our strategic objectives and our history have been
based on both organic and acquired growth.

Qur quality systems and processes are based on [SO
standards with all our domestic and Monterrey, Mexico
facilities certified to the latest version of the ISO 9001
standards. We believe these certifications benefit our
customer base and increase our chances of attracting new
business opportunities.

We are committed to quality, cost effectiveness and
responsiveness to customer requirements. To achieve
these objectives we have invested in ROHS (lead free)
processing, equipment, additional plant capacity, people,
systems and we have adopted lean manufacturing and
supply chain management techniques at our facilities. We
are committed to continuous improvement in order to
provide competitive and complete manufacturing service
solutions to our customers. We will continue to maintain a
diversified customer hase, and expand into other
capabilities and services when they fit our core
competencies and strategic vision.

MARKETING

We concentrate our marketing efforts in the industrial
equipment, medical, military/defense and transportation
industries and with the recent acquisition of our lowa
circuit board operation, we enter into the agriculture and
oil and gas markets. Our marketing strategy emphasizes
the breadth of our manufacturing, supply chain and
engineering services and reflects the complete turnkey
solution for meeting our customers’ current and future
requirements.

Our emphasis continues to be on mature companies,
which require a contract manufacturer with a high degree

of manufacturing and quality sophistication, including
statistical process control {SPC), statistical quality control
(SQC), International Standards Organization {ISO), Military
Specifications (Mill Spec) and Aerospace Systems 9100
{AS}. We continue efforts to penetrate our existing |
customer base and expand new market opportuntties in |
Mexico, Asia and Europe, in addition to participation in
industry publications and selected trade shows. We target
customers who value proven manufacturing performance,
design and application engineering expertise and who
value the flexibility to manage the supply chain of a high
mix of product and service. We market our products and
services through our in-house sales force and independent
manufacturers’ representatives.

SOURCES AND AVAILABILITY OF MATERIALS

On occasion some of our components may be placed
on a stringent allocation basis; however, due to the excess
manufacturing capacity currently available at most
component manufacturers, we do not anticipate any major
material purchasing or availability problems occurring in
the foreseeable future.

PATENTS AND LICENSES

We are not presently dependent on a proprietary
product requiring licensing, patent, copyright or trademark
protection. There are no revenues derived from a service-
related business for which patents, licenses, copyrights
and trademark protection are necessary for successful
operations.

COMPETITION

The contract manufacturing EMS industry competitive
makeup includes small closely held contract
manufacturing companies, large global full-service
contract manufacturers, company-owned in-house
manufacturing facilities and foreign contract
manufacturers. We do not believe that the small closely
held operations pose a significant competitive threat in the
markets and customers we serve, as they generally do not
have the complete manufacturing services or capabilities
required by our target customers. We believe the larger
global full service and foreign manufacturers do provide a
substantial competitive environment while the company-
owned operations create an increasing opportunity as the
trend of more outsourcing continues.

Technical support from foreign competition has
improved greatly along with their ability to be more
responsive fo engineering and schedule changes. The




willingness of foreign manufacturers to “stock” finished
product at warehouse locations in the United States is
another of their competitive advantages, however, their
inability to react to engineering, product or schedule
changes is a disadvantage and piays into our strength. To
mitigate foreign competition, we maintain a contractual
agreement allowing us to provide a China manufacturing
solution and we operate a manufacturing operation in
Mexico to support our customers with a “Low Cost” supply
chain solution.

BACKLOG

Historically, our backlog has been running 60 to 90
days. However, because of the increased emphasis on just-
in-time manufacturing {JIT), reduced lead times and
repetitive scheduling, our historical backlog levels may not
be indicative of future results due to customers
reschedulting and canceling of orders. As of December 31,
2006 our 90 day backlog was approximately $19.5 million
compared to approximately $24.9 million on
December 31, 2005. We expect a major portion of the
backlog will be realized as revenue during first quarter
2007.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Two divisions of General Electric, Co. (G.E.) combined
account for 10% or more of our net sales during the past
three years. G.E.'s Medical and Transportation Divisions
together accounted for 17%, 17% and 15% of net sales
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Accounts receivable from G.E.'s Medical and
Transportation Divisions at December 31, 2006 and 2005
represented 14% and 12% of total accounts receivable,
respectively. Additionally, Northrop Grumman Corp.
accounted for 10% of net sales for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Accounts receivable from
Northrop Grumman at December 31, 2006 and 2005
represented 15% and 9% of total accounts receivable,
respectively. Historically, we have not experienced
significant losses on customer receivable collections in any
particular industry or geographic area.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We perform research and development for customers
on an as requested and program basis for development of
conceptual engineering and design activities prior to
manufacturing the products. We did not expend significant
dollars in 2006, 2005 or 2004 on company-sponsored
product research and development.

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW COMPLIANCE

We believe that our manufacturing facilities are
currently operating under compliance with local, state, and
federal environmental laws. We have incurred and plan to
continue incurring, the necessary expenditures for
compliance with applicable laws. Any environmental-
oriented equipment is capitalized and depreciated over a
seven-year period. The annualized depreciation expense
for this type of environmental equipment is insignificant.

EMPLOYEES

We have 911 full-time, 80 part-time and 17
temporary employees as of December 31, 2006.
Manufacturing personnel, including direct, indirect
support and sales functions, comprise 967 employees,
while general administrative employees total 41.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS AND EXPORT SALES

We have a leased manufacturing facility in Monterrey,
Mexico with approximatety $562,000 in long-term assets
at December 31, 2006. Export sales represent 5% of
consolidated sales for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004,

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in ltem 7, contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We may
alsc make forward-looking statements in other reports filed
with the SEC, in materials delivered to stockholders and in
press releases. Such statements generally will be
accompanied by words such as “anticipate,” “believe,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “intend,” “possible,”
“potential,” “predict,” “project,” or other similar words
that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes.
Although we believe these forward-looking statements are
reasonable, they are based upon a number of assumptions
cencerning future conditions, any or all of which may
ultimately prove to be inaccurate. Forward-looking
statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from the forward-iooking statements inciude,
without limitation:

LI

+ Volatility in the marketplace which may affect
market supply and demand of our products;

* Increased competition;




+ Changes in the reliability and efficiency of our
operating facilities or those of third parties;

* Risks related to availability of labor;

» Increase in certain raw material costs such as
copper

e Commodity and Energy cost instabitity

» General economic, financial and business
conditions that could affect our financial condition
and resuits of operations.

The factors identified above are believed to be
important factors (but not necessarily all of the important
factors) that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statement
made by us. Discussion of these factors is also
incorporated in Part |, item 1A, “Risk Factors”, and should
be considered an integral part of Part |1, ltem 7,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”. Unpredictable or
unknown factors not discussed herein could also have
material adverse effects on forward-looking statements. All
forward-looking statements included in this Form 10-K are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the forgoing
cautionary statements, We undertake no obligations to
update publicly any forward-looking statement (or its
associated cautionary language) whether as a result of new
information or future events.

ITEM1A.  RISKFACTORS

In evaluating us as a company, careful consideration
should be given to the following risk factors, in addition to
the other information included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Each of these risk factors could adversely
affect our business, operating results and/or financial
condition, as well as adversely affect the value of an
investment in our common stock. In addition to the
following disclosures, please refer to the other information
contained in this report, including the consolidated
financial statements and the related notes.

We operate in a in the highly competitive EMS (Electronic
Manufacturing Services) ingustry.

We compete against many EMS companies. The larger
global competitors have more resources and greater
economics of scale. We also compete with OEM in-house
operations that are continually evaluating manufacturing
products internally against the advantages of outsourcing.
We may also be at a competitive disadvantage with respect

to price when compared to manufacturers with excess
capacity, lower cost structures and availability of lower
cost labor.

The availability of excess manufacturing capacity of
our competitors also creates competitive pressure on price
and winning new business. We must continue to provide
services, a quality product, be responsive and flexible to
customers’ requirements for design and technical support
schedule changes and deliver. Our lack of execution could
have an adverse effect on our operations.

A large percentage of our sales have been made fo a small number of
customers, and the loss of a major customer, if nof replaced, would
atlversely affect us.

We have several customers that are responsible for a
significant portion of our net sales. General Efectric Co.'s
{G.E.) Medical and Transportation Divisions together
accounted for 17%, 17% and 15% of net sales for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Additionally, Northrop Grumman Corp.
accounted for 10% of net sales for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005. If there is a loss of ane or
more major customers or a significant decline in sales to
our major customers it could have an adverse effect on our
results from operations. We will continue to expand our
customer base through our in-house sales efforts and
target our acquisitions to reduce the dependence.

We are dependent on suppliers for electronic companents and may
experience shortages, cost premivms and shipment delays that would
adversely affect our customers and us.

We purchase raw materials, commodities and
components for use in our production. Increased costs of
these materials could have an adverse effect on our
production costs if we are unable to pass along price
increases or reduce the other cost of goods produced
through cost improvement initiatives. Fuel and energy cost
increases could also adversely affect our freight and
operating costs. Due to customer specifications and
requirements, we are dependent on suppliers to provide
critical electronic components and materials for our
operations that could result in shortages of some of the
electronic components need for their production,
Component shortages may result in expedited freight,
overtime premium and increased component costs. In
addition to the financial impact on operations from lost
revenue and increased cost, there could potentially be
harm to our custorner relationships.




Our customers cancel orders, change order guantity, timing and
specifications and if not managed would have an adverse affect on
inventory carrying costs.

We do face through the normal course of business
excess and obsolete inventory losses as a result of
customer order changes, cancellations, product changes
and contract termination that could have an adverse effect
on our operations. We estimate and reserve for any known
or potential impact from these possibilities.

The manufacture and sale of our products carries potential risk for
product liability claims.

We represent and warrant the goods and services we
deliver are free from defects in material and workmanship
for one year (1) from ship date. Unless otherwise agreed
to, workmanship shall be in accordance with tPC and
ANSI/J- Standards such as IPC-A-610, class 2, IPC-
A-620, class 2, ANSI/J-STDQO1, class 2, C-20. We make
no other guarantees or warranties, expressed or implied, of
any nature whatsoever as to the goods including without
limitation, warranties to merchantability, fit for a particular
purpose or non-infringement of patent or the like uniess
agreed upon in writing. If a product liability claim results
in our being liable and the amount is in excess of our
insurance coverage or there is no insurance coverage for
the claim then it could have an adverse effect on our
business and financial position.

We depend heavily on our people and may from time to time have
difficulty attracting and retaining skilled employees.

Our operations depend upon the continued
contributions of our key management, marketing,
technical, financial, accounting, product development
engineers, sales people and operational personnel. We also
believe that our continued success will depend upon our
ability to attract, retain and develop highly skilled
managerial and technical resources within the highly
competition EMS industry. Not being able to attract or
retain these employees could have a material adverse
effect on revenues and earnings.

Operating in foreign countries expose our operations to risks that
could adversely affect our operating results.

We've operated a manufacturing facility in Mexico
since 2002 and we may in the future expand into other
foreign countries. The benefits projected for our Mexico
operation have taken more time then expected to integrate
into our marketing strategies and our operation there is
subject to risks, which could adversely impact our

financial results such as economic or political volatility,
employee turnover, staffing, managing personnel in diverse
culture, labor instability, transpertation delays, and foreign
currency flux.

Non-compliance with environmental laws may result in restrictions
and adverse effects on operations.

Qur operations are regulated under a number of
federal, state, and foreign environmental and safety laws
and regulations that govern the discharge of hazardous
materials into the air and water, as well as the handling,
storage, and disposal of such materials. These laws and
regulations include the Clean Air Act; the Clean Water Act;
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act; as well as analogous state and foreign
laws and compliance with these environmental laws is a
major consideration for us because of our manufacturing
processes and materials. It is possible we may be subject
to potential financial liability for costs associated with the
investigation and remediation at our sites and may have an
adverse effect on operations. We have not incurred
significant costs related to compliance with environmental
laws and regulations, and we believe that our operations
comply with all applicable environmental laws.

Environmental laws could also become more stringent
over time, imposing greater compliance costs and
increasing risks and penalties associated with violation.
We operate in environmentally sensitive locations and are
subject to potentially conflicting and changing regulatory
agendas of political, business, and environmental groups.
Changes or restrictions on discharge limits; emissions
levels; or material storage, handling, or disposal might
require a high level of unplanned capital investment or
relocation. It is possible that environmental compliance
costs and penalties from new or existing regu'ations may
harm our business, financial conditicn, and results of
operations.

We may he subject to risks associated with our acquisitions, and the
risks could have an adverse effect on our operating resuifs.

Our strategy is to grow our business organically and
through acquisitions, atliances and joint venture
arrangements. We will continue to pursue and acquire
additional businesses in the EMS industry that fit our
long-term objectives for growth and profitability. The
success of our acquisitions will depend on our ability to
integrate the new operations with the existing operations.




In June 2002, we acquired Manufacturing Assembly
Solutions of Monterrey, Inc. (MAS), a Mexican corporation,
located in Monterrey, Mexico. The benefits of this
acqguisition has taken more time then expected to integrate
into our marketing strategies. In February 2007, we
purchased a printed circuit board operation in Garner,
lowa with the expectation that the results will be accretive
to the overall business.

If we fail to comply with the covenants contained in our revolving
credit facility we may be unable to secure additional financing and
repayment obligations on our outstanding indebtedness may be
accelerated.

Qur revolving credit facility and debt agreements
contain financial and operating covenants with which we
must comply. As of December 31, 2006, we were in
compliance with each of these covenants. However, among
other factors, our continued compliance with these
covenants is dependent on our financial results, which are
subject to fluctuation as described elsewhere in these risk
factors. If we fail to comply with the covenants in the
future or if our lender does not agree to waive any future
non-compliance, we may be unable to borrow funds and
any outstanding indebtedness could become immediately
due and payable, which could materialtly harm our
business.

Dur business may be impacted by natural disasters.

Tornadoes, blizzards and other natural disasters could
negatively impact our business and suppiy chain. In
countries, which we rely on for operations and materials,
such as Mexico, China and Thailand, potential natural
disasters could disrupt our manufacturing operations;
reduce demand for our customers’ products and increase
supply chain costs.

ITEM1B.  UNRESDLYED STAFF COMMENTS

Not Applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
ADMINISTRATION

Our Corporate Headquarters consists of approximately
3,600 square feet located in Wayzata, Minnesota, a
western suburb of Minneapolis, Minnesota. The Corporate
Headquarters has a tease with a five-year term that expires
on July 31, 2010. A portion of the Bemidji facility is used
for corporate financial and information shared services.

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

QOur manufacturing facilities as described below, are
all in reasonably good operating condition and are suitable
for our needs. We believe our overall productive capacity is
sufficient to handle our foreseeable manufacturing needs.

We own our Bemidji, Minnesota facility consisting of
eight acres of land and a building of approximately
69,300 square feet consisting of 55,800 square feet
designated for manufacturing space, and the remaining
space is used for offices. We also lease a 6,000 square
foot warehouse in Bemidji, Minnesota.

We own three buildings in Fairmont, Minnesota,
which together contain approximately 51,000 square feet
consisting of 38,000 square feet designated for
manufacturing space, and the remaining space is used for
offices.

On June 28, 2006, we purchased a building in Blue
Earth, Minnescta, of approximately 140,000 square feet
consisting of 92,000 square feet designated for
manufacturing with 46,000 square feet of the §2,000
manufacturing square feotage being leased back to the
seller through June 30, 2007, per the lease agreement,
and the remaining space is being used for offices and
warehouse.

We own a building in Merrifield, Minnesota,
consisting of approximately 45,800 square feet consisting
of 33,800 square feet designated for manufacturing, and
the rematining space is used for offices and warehouse.

We lease two buildings in Baxter, Minnesota where we
lease 8,700 square feet in one building and 8,300 square
feet in the other building, which together contain 13,000
square feet designated for electronic board repair of
medical equipment with the remaining space being used
for offices and warehouse. We are leasing these buildings
on a menth-to-month basis.

We own our Augusta, Wisconsin facility consisting of
five acres of land and a building of approximately 20,000
square feet which consist of 15,000 square feet
designated for manufacturing space with the remaining
manufacturing space being used as warehouse, and the
remaining 5,000 square feet is used for offices.

We lease a 15,000 square foot building in our
Monterrey, Mexico consisting of 13,500 square feet
designated for manufacturing space with the remaining
space being used for offices. The lease expires in
June 2007, and we plan on exercising the additional
three-year option at that time.



As part of the acquisition of the Garner, lowa
operations on February 4, 2007, we assumed the existing
building lease, which expires in June 2008. The leased
building consists of 38,000 square feet with designated
manufacturing space of 30,000 square feet with the
remaining space being used for offices.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in ordinary, routine
or regulatory legal proceedings incidental to the business.
When a loss is deemed probable and reasonably estimable
an amount is recorded in our financial statements. We
currently are not a party to any material legal proceeding.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY
HOLDERS
None.
PART !l
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

As of March 6, 2007, there were 846 shareholders of
record. Our stock is listed on the National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System
{“NASDAQ") Small Cap Market under the symbol “NSYS".
We intend to invest our profits into the growth of our
operations and, therefore, do not plan to pay out dividends
to shareholders in the foreseeable future. We did not
declare or pay a cash dividend in 2006 or 2005. Future
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dividend policy and payments, if any, will depend upon
earnings and our financial condition, cur need for funds,
any limitations on payments of dividends present in our
current or future debt agreements and other factors. Stock
price comparisons follow.

Stock price comparisons (NASDAQ):

During the Three Months Ended Low High
March 31,2006, ............... $6.16 $8.16
June 30,2006 ................. $6.562 $9.08
September 30, 2006............ $6.59 $%7.90
December 31, 2006............. $7.05 $7.94
March 31,2005................ $5.62 $6.92
June 30, 2005........... ... $5.00 %7.00
September 30, 2005............ $5.62 $6.60
December 31, 2005............. $5.30 %6.25

Sales of Unregistered Securities:

We did not have any unregistered sales of equity
securities in 2006.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and
Affiliated Purchasers:

We did not make any purchases of our equity
securities in 2006,
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Certain information with respect to our equity
compensation plans are contained in Part {ll, ltem 12 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




ITEM B, SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial data have been derived from, and are qualified by reference to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006. The audited consolidated financial
statements of Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary referred to above are included elsewhere herein. The selected
historical financial data set forth below as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and for each of the years in the three
year period ended December 31, 2003 have been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Nortech
Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary not included herein. The selected financial data set forth below should be read in
conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes thereto of Nortech Systems
Incorporated and Subsidiary included elsewhere herein.

Year ended December 31: 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
NetSales.......... o, $1056,147,228 $ 84,215,663 $ 72,674,159 $57,958,698 $60,655,579
Gross Profit .......... ... ... .... 12,779,720 10,032,228 8,538,973 6,494 976 10,519,536
Net Income ..., 1,311,778 928,781 587,329 633,448 2,403,112
Basic Income Per Common Share . ... 50 36 23 .26 1.00
Diluted Income Per Common Share. . . 49 .36 .23 .25 .95
At Becember 31:

Total Assets. . ... oo 41,877,944 39,668,551 36,881,608 31,580,790 29,602,400
Working Capital ................... *12,711,278 *12,214,328 *11,749,091 16,723,263 14,266,058
Total Long-Term Debt.............. *3,5634,709 *2,714,227 *3,399,210 9,643,336 8,580,944
Shareholders' Equity............... 18,301,858 16,653,364 15,516,581 14,321,280 13,090,130

No dividends were declared or paid in any year from 2002 to 2006.

* In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the revolving line of credit was classified in current liabilities. In the previous years these
amounts had been reflected as long-term. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the revolving line of credit,
classified as a current liability, had outstanding borrowings of $4,694.027, $4,228 234 and $7,523,058,
respectively. For additronal financial data (2006 and 2005 by quarter information), see Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF DPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

We are a Wayzata, Minnesota based full-service
Electronics Manufacturing Services (EMS) contract
manufacturer of wire and cable assemblies, printed circuit
board assemblies, higher-leve! assemblies and box builds
for a wide range of industries. Markets served include
industrial equipment, transportation, medical,
military/defense, computer, recreation and food. In
Minnesota, we have facilities in Baxter, Bemidji, Blue
Earth, Fairmont and Merrifield. We also have facilities in
Augusta, Wisconsin, Garner, lowa and Monterrey, Mexico.

The vast majority of our revenue is derived from
products that are built to the customer's design
specifications. We provide a high degree of manufacturing
sophistication. During 2006, we continued our supply
chain initiatives designed to reduce costs, improve asset
utilization and increase responsiveness to customers. Our
strategy has been to expand and diversify our customer
base, and we are focusing our sales and marketing
approach to target greater value-added service
opportunities. Qur market strength is low-volume, high-mix
production, particularly with complex products. Our
investment in the Mexico operation in 2002 allows for
expansion into medium volume, medium mix and lower
cost production and our contractual arrangements with
Chinese manufacturers allow us to meet high-volume, low
mix and fower cost customer requirements.

During 2006, we experienced growth in our Sales,
Gross Profit, and Net Income. For the years ended
December 31, 2006 we had sales of $105.1 million,
compared to $84.2 million for 2005 and $72.7 million for
2004. The increase for 2006 of $20.9 million was a
24.9% improvement over 2005. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we had gross profit
of $12.8 million, $10.0 million and $8.5 million,
respectively. Gross profits as a percentage of gross sales
were 12.2%, 11.9% and 11.8% for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
modest gross profit increase in 2006 was attributed to
volume leveraging in our operations and a favorable mix of
products helping offset material and energy cost increases.
Our net income in 2006 was $1,311,778 or $0.49 per
diluted common share compared to $928,781 or $0.36
per diluted common share in 2005. Our 2004 net income
was $587,329, or $0.23 per diluted common share.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Qur significant accounting policies and estimates are
summarized in the footnotes to our annual consolidated
financial statements. Some of the accounting policies
require us to exercise significant judgment in selecting the
appropriate assumptions for calculating financial
estimates. Such judgments are subject to an inherent
degree of uncertainty. These judgments are based on
historical experience, known trends in the industry, terms
of existing contracts and other information from outside
sources, as appropriate. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions and
conditions. Certain of the most critical polictes that
require significant judgment are as follows.

Revenue Recognition:

We recognize revenue upon shipment of products to
customers, when title has passed, al! contractual
obligations have been satisfied and collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. In the normal
course of business we enter into a number of contracts
with customers under which we provide engineering
services on a per project basis. Revenue for these services
is recognized upon completion of the engineering process,
usually upon initial shipment of the product. Revenues
from repair services are recognized upon shipment of
related equipment to customers.

Mlowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

We analyze accounts receivable, historical write-offs
of bad debts, customer concentrations, customer credit-
worthiness, current economic trends and changes in
customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of
the allowance for uncoliectible accounts. We maintain an
allowance for doubtful accounts at an amount estimated to
be sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses
resulting from collecting less than full payment on
receivables. A considerable amount of judgment is
required when assessing the realizability of receivables,
including assessing the probability of collection and the
current credit-worthiness of each customer. If the financial
condition of our customers was to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, an
additiona! provision for uncollectible accounts may be
required. We have not experienced significant bad debts
expense and the reserve for uncollectible accounts of
$220,000 is considered adequate for any exposure to loss
in the December 31, 2006 accounts receivable.




Inventory Reserves:

Inventory reserves are maintained for the estimated
vatue of the inventory that may have a lower value than
stated or quantities in excess of future production needs.
We have an evaluation process that is used to assess the
value of the inventory that is slow moving, excess or
obsolete on a quarterly basis. We believe the total reserve
of $1.3 million at December 31, 2006 is adequate.

Long-Lived and Intangihle Asset Impairment:

We evaluate long-lived assets and intangible assets
with finite lives for impairment, as well as the related
amortization periods, to determine whether adjustments to
these amounts or useful lives are required based on
current events and circumstances. The evaluation is based
on our projection of the undiscounted future operating
cash flaws of the underlying assets. To the extent such
projections indicate that future undiscounted cash flows
are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of
related assets, a charge is recorded to reduce the carrying
amount to equal estimated fair value.

The test for impairment requires us to make several
estimates about fair value, most of which are based on
projected future cash flows. The estimates associated with
the asset impairment tests are considered critical due to
the judgments required in determining fair value amounts,
including projected future cash flows. Changes in these
estimates may result in the recognition of an impairment
loss.

Income taxes:

Our estimate of the tax rates utitized in the
calculation of the deferred tax balances is based on
histarical taxable income and expected future taxable
income and corresponding rates. Further, our
censideration of a valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets is based upon estimates of taxable income in future
periods and future realizability of these assets.

Self-Insured Health Claim Accruals:

We estimatle our reserve for empioyee health claims
based on health claims incurred, historical lag times and
an analysis of claims activity during the period, while
taking into consideration insurance limits and coverage.
We believe the total accrual of $325,000 at December 31,
2006 is adequate.
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Stock-Based Compensation:

We adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R, Share-
Based Payment on tanuary 1, 2006. SFAS 123R requires
us to measure and recognize in our consolidated
statements of cperations the expense associated with all
share-based payment awards made o employees and
directors based on estimated fair values. We utilize the
Black-Scholes option valuation model to measure the
amount of compensation expense o be recognized for
each option award. There are several assumptions that
must be made when using the Black-Scholes model such
as the expected term of each option, the expected
volatility of the stock price during the expected term of the
option, the expected dividends to be paid and the risk free
interest rate expected during the option term. Of these
assumptions, the expected term of the option and
expected volatility of our common stock are the most
difficult to estimate since they are based on the exercise
behavior of employees and the expected future
performance of our stock. An increase in the volatility of
our stock price or an increase in the average period before
exercise will increase the amount of compensation
expense related to awards granted after December 31,
2006.

Based on a critical assessment of our accounting
policies and the underlying judgments and uncertainties
affecting the application of those policies, we believe that
our censeolidated financial statements provide a
meaningful and fair presentation of our financial pesition.
This is not to suggest that other general risk factors, such
as changes in worldwide economic conditions, fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in materials
costs, performance of acquired businesses and others,
could nat adversely impact our consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows in future
periods.

No matters have come to our attention since
December 31, 2006 that would cause the estimates
included in the consclidated financial statements to
change materially.




OPERATING RESULTS

The following table presents statement of operations
data as percentages of total revenues for the indicated
year:

2006 2005 2004

NetSales..................... 100% 100% 100%
Cost of Goods Sold . ............ 88% 88% 88%
Gross Profit .......... ... ..., 12% 12% 12%
Selling Expenses . . ............. 4% 4% 4%
General and Administrative

Expenses .......... .. ...t 5% 5% 6%
Income from QOperations. ........ 3% 3% 2%
Other Expenses, Net .. .......... 1% 1% 1%
Income Tax Expense .. .......... 1% 1% 0%
Netlhcome ...... ... ... ... 1% 1% 1%
Revenues:

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
we had sales of $105.1 million and $84.2 million,
respectively, an increase of $20.9 million or 24.9%. Our
Aerospace Systems sales led the strong revenue growth in
2006 and accounted for 51% of the overall increase,
followed by increased sales of Electronic Circuit Board
Assemblies accounting for 27% of the overall growth and
an increase of 22% for all other Cable & Wire sales
combined. Qur 2006 sales increase was mainly driven by
increased demand, minimal price increases to offset
commodity and energy costs and favorable Aerospace
Systems product mix.

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
we had sales of $84.2 million and $72.7 million,
respectively, an increase of $11.5 million or 15.9%.
Aerospace Systems sales led the revenue growth in 2005
and accounted for 60% of the overall increase, followed by
increased sales of Electronic Circuit Board Assemblies
accounting for 43% of the overall growth and a decrease
of 3% for all other Cable & Wire sales combined.

Gross Profit:

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, we had gross profit of $12.8 million, $10.0 million
and $8.5 million, respectively. Gross profits as a
percentage of gross sales were 12.2%, 11.9% and 11.8%
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The 2006 gross profit improvement in both
dollar and percentage was mainly due to the favorable
impact of valume and leveraging on our operations which
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more than offset energy and commodity (copper and
petroleum based products) cost pressures throughout all of
2006.

Selling:

Selling expenses were $4.7 million or 4.4% of net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2006, $3.2 million
or 3.8% of net sales for the year ended December 31,
2005, and $3.2 million or 4.3% of net sales for the years
ended December 31, 2004. The increase in selling
expense in 2006 from 2005 as a percentage of sales was
a resuit of increased commissions of $0.5 million as a
result of increased commissionable sales accounting for
31% of the increase and an overall increase of $1.0
million or 69% of the increase in marketing and sales
related spending, consisting mostly of personnel, travel
and expense to support the sales growth. The decrease in
selling expenses in 2005 from 2004 as a percentage of
sales was a result of lower commission rates and lower
commissionable sales and an 8.4% reduction in spending
in marketing and sales related expenses.

General and Administrative:

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, general and administrative expenses were $5.4
million, $4.7 million and $4.1 million, respectively. The
increase in general and administrative expenses of $0.7
million in 2006 from 2005 is mainly attributed to the
increased employee related expenses of approximately
$0.5 million to support the growth and services, and the
recognition of approximately $0.2 million of stock-based
compensation expense. The increase in general and
administrative expenses of $0.6 million in 2005 from
2004 is attributable to the increased investment in
infrastructure and employee related expenses, comprised
primarily of $0.4 million to support the growth and
consolidation of corporate shared services. In addition,
overall outside service costs increased $0.2 million and
were related to increased compliance requirements and
process improvements.

Other Income {Expense):

Interest income for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $9,100,
$2,600, and $2,100, respectively. Miscellaneous income
(loss) was $45,000, ($70,000) and $16,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The increase in miscellaneous income experienced in
2006 over 2005 is attributable to fairly stable exchange
rates experienced in 2006.




Interest expense was approximately $821,000,
$652,000, and $490,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In
2006 and 2005, a steady increase in interest rates of
approximately 1% throughout the year and higher average
carrying debt levels accounted for the majerity of the
increased interest expense. 2004 saw favorable interest
rates throughout the year and lower working capital
requirements that kept interest expenses low.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense amounted to $570,000,
$465,000, and $268,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In
2006, the effective income tax rate was 30% and was
impacted favorably by R & D tax credits of $140,000 and
Section 199 Deduction for Income Attributable to
Domestic Production Activities. In 2005, the effective
income tax rate was 30% and was impacted favorably by
R & D tax credits of $127,000 and Section 199
Deduction for Income Attributable to Domestic Production
Activities. In 2004 the effective income tax rate was 31%
and was impacted favorably by R & D tax credits of
$129,000. A reconciliation of income tax expense for the
years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is
included in Note 6 to the conselidated financial
statements.

Net Income:

Our net income in 2006 was $1,311,778 or $0.49
per diluted common share compared to $928,781 or
$0.36 per diluted common share in 2005. Our 2004 net
income was $587,329, or $0.23 per diluted common
share. The changes in net income are the result of the
aforementioned factors.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the Securities & Exchange
Commission issued Staff Accounting Builetin 108
(SAB 108) “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements”. SAB 108 requires that public
companies utilize a “dual-approach” to assessing the
guantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dual
approach includes both an ingcome statement focused
assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. The
guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial
statements for fiscal years ending after November 15,
2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material
impact on our financial statements.
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in September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157
(SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS 157
establishes a commaon definition for fair value to be
applied to U.S. GAAP guidance requirtng use of fair vaiue,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, We are currently assessing the
impact of SFAS 157 may have on our consclidated
financial position and results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASE issued Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an Interpretation of FASB Statement 109", which clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48
provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position
can be recognized in our consolidated financial
statements, only if the position is more likely than not to
be sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of
the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for our
fiscal 2007 year end, with the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment
to opening retained earnings. We have evaluated the
impact of adopting FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 and found
that we presently do not anticipate any impact on our
consclidated financial statements.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 47 (FIN 47), which clarifies terminology in
FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations. FIN 47 clarifies when an entity
has sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair
value of an asset retirement obligation. We adopted
FIN 47 on January 1, 2006 with no material impact to the
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R
(SFAS 123R), “Share-Based Payment: An Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 123,” which requires companies to
recognize in the income statement the grant-date fair
value of stock options and other equity-based
compensation issued to employees. In adopting
SFAS 123R, as of lanuary 1, 2006, we used the modified
prospective transition method. A further discussion of the
effects of SFAS 123R can be found in Note 9.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151,
Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.
The amendments made by the SFAS No. 151 require that
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs and wasted materials {spoilage} be
recognized as current-period charges. This Statement




requires the allocation of fixed production overhead to
inventory based on the normal capacity of production
facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs

incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. We adopted SFAS 151 on January 1, 2006 with no
material impact to our consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

The following are unaudited ratios:

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current Ratio. . .... o e e e 1.63 1.60 1.66
(Current Assets / Current Liabilities)
Working Capital. .. ... o e $12,711,278 $12,214,328 $11,749,991

(Current Assets—Current Liabilities)

Quick Ratio . ... e .76 .75 J7
(Cash + Accounts Receivable / Current Liabilities)

Accounts Receivable to Working Capital .. ............ ... ... ...
(Average Accounts Receivable / Working Capital)

Inventory to Working Capital. . ... ... ... o i 1.25 1.23 1.10
(Average Inventory / Working Capital)

1.14 1.14 1.03

Cash Flow:
December 31, Becember 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating Activities. .. .. ... . i $ 2,842,531 $ 5,120,151 $ (324,130)

Investing ACtivIties . .. ... oo e {3,405,914) (1,427,059) (1,420,126)
Financing ACtivities. . . ... i e 449 275 (3,332,012) 2,204,451
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash. . ......... ... .o (124) (76,740) (5,591)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ................ $ (114,232) $ 284,340 $ 454,604

On April 28, 2006 we entered into a 6" amendment to our credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (WFB)
increasing our line of credit arrangement from $8 million to $10 million and extending the maturity dates of the line of
credit to April 30, 2008 and our real estate term note to July 30, 2011. On February 2, 2007, we entered intoa 7"
amendment to our credit agreement with WFB increasing our line of credit arrangement from $10 million to $15 million
and extending the maturity date of the line of credit to Aprit 30, 2009. Additionally, the 7" amendment increased our real
estate term note balance of $1,680,555 at February 2, 2007 to $3,348,750 and extended the maturity date to May 31,
2012. Per the 7™ amendment, both the line of credit and real estate term note are subject to variations in the LIBOR rates.
The 7" amendment funded the lowa acquisition on February 4, 2007.

The line of credit and other installment debt with WFB contain certain covenants, which, among other things, require
us to adhere to regular reporting requirements, abide by annual shareholder dividend limitations, maintain certain financial
ratios, and limit the amount of annual capital expenditures. The availability under the line is subject to borrowing base
requirements, and advances are at the discretion of the lender. The line is secured by substantially all of our assets. This
commitment is summarized as described below:

Total
An?uznt Dutstanding at Date of
Other Commercial Commitment Committed December 31, 2006 Expiration
Line of credit. .o oo e e $15,000,000 $4,694,027 April 30, 2009
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As of December 31, 2006 and prior to the 7"
Amendment, we have net unused availability under our
line of credit agreement of approximately $5.3 million.

On December 31, 2006, we had working capital of
approximately $12.7 million as compared to $12.2 million
at the end of 2005. During 2006, we generated
approximatety $2.8 million of cash flow from operating
activities. The cash flow from operations is due primarily
to net income of $1.3 million and noncash depreciation,
amortization, foreign currency transaction loss, and the
change in deferred taxes, which totaled $1.8 millicn in net
positive adjustments. The most significant impact on cash
due to changes in operating assets and liabilities was the
use of cash to pay income taxes, which was offset, in part,
by increases in accrued payroll and commissions.

Our net cash used in investing activities of $3.4
million primarily consisted of $1.4 million spent on a
building we purchased on June 28, 2006, in Blue Earth,
Minnesota, $1.5 million on equipment purchases,
$0.1 million on building additions and improvements $0.4
miliion of cash restricted for the future purchase of fixed
assets at our new Blue Earth facility.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $0.4
million consisted primarily of drawing $0.5 million on our
iine of credit along with increases in long-term debt of
$1.1 million from the equipment note and $1.4 million
from the industrial revenue bond for the Blue Earth,

MN facitity purchase, and issuance of shares of common
stock of $0.1 million, which was offset by the decrease in
our checks in excess of our bank balance of $1.2 million,
payments of long-term debt of $1.4 million and payments
of bond issue costs $0.1 million.

Set forth below is information about our long-term contractual obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2006 as
adjusted for the long-term liabilities assumed in connection with the acquisition of the Garner, lowa operation on
February 4, 2007. It brings together data for easy reference from the consolidated balance sheet and from individual notes
to the consolidated financial statements. This information is important in understanding our financial position.

Bank Note Payable
Long-Term Debt. ... ... .. .. i
Operating Leases
Equipment Purchase Commitments. ... ........ ... ... ...
Total Contractual Obligations

From time to time, we enter into purchase
commitments with our suppliers under customary
purchase order terms. Any significant losses implicit in
those contracts will be recognized in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. At
December 31, 2006, no such losses existed.

We believe that our existing resources and anticipated
cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our
working capital needs for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 7a.  QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential change in an instrument’s
value caused, for example, by fluctuations in interest and
currency exchange rates. Our primary market risk
exposures are interest rate and unfavorable movements in
exchange rates between the U.S. dellar and the Mexican
peso. Monitoring and managing these risks is a continual

17

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1 Yr 2-3Yrs 4-5Yrs Future
$4,694,027 % — % — % —
1,676,612 1,377,761 696,500 3,037,216
391,509 378251 60,368 —
532,000 — — —
$7,194,148 $1,756,012 $756,868 $3,037,215

process carried out by senior management. Market risk is
managed hased on an ongoing assessment of trends in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and ecocnomic
developments, giving consideration to possible effects on
both total return and reported earnings. Our financial
advisors, both internal and external, provide angoing
advice regarding trends that affect management’s
assessment.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity:

We conduct operaticns in Mexico. Accordingly,
exposure exists to potentially adverse movements in
foreign currency rates. We do not use foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge the risk of change in fereign
currency exchange rates. Our conselidated financial
statements are denominated in U.S. dollars and
accordingly, changes in the exchange rates between the
Mexico subsidiary's local currency and the U.S. dollar will
affect the translation of the subsidiary’s financial results



into U.S. dollars for the purposes of reporting the
consolidated financial results. We do not hedge these
matters because cash flows from international operations
are generally re-invested locally. it is estimated that a
10% change in foreign exchange rates would not have a
material impact on earnings.

Interest Rate Sensitivity:

The effective interest rate on our credit facilities are
influenced by the actions of the Federal Reserve in
establishing from time to time the Federal Funds Interest

18

Rate which is the rate banks borrow from the Federal
Reserve Bank. During the latter half of 2004 and
throughout 2005 and 2006, the Federal Reserve has been
increasing the Federal Funds Interest Rate, causing the
effective interest rate on our facilities o increase. Based
on the balance outstanding under our interest-bearing
facilities at year-end, a percentage point change in the
effective interest rate would change interest expense by
less than $100,000 annuatly.

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left
blank)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary
Wayzata, Minnesota

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Nortech Systems incorporated and Subsidiary as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” in 2006.

s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 7, 2007
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NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOCLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

ASSETS 2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents. . ... ... o e $ 725,891 $ 840,123
Accounts Receivable, Less Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts. ................ 14,493,339 14,447 612
IO S . L 15,976,222 15,849,470
Prepaid EXpenses .. ... . 492,177 466,083
Income Taxes Receivable .. ... .. 209,025 —
Deferred Tax ASSBlS. . . ottt e e 856,000 912,000
Total Current ASsels . . . 32,752 6584 32,515,288
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land . .. 300,000 151,800
Building and Leasehold Improvements . ....... ... .. ... ... . ... .. ... 6,063,385 4,819,919
Manufacturing Equipment .. ... 9,092,455 7,662,699
Office and Other Equipment. ... .. .. ... . . . 3,532,038 3,413,968
ConstruCtion in Progress . . . .. v e e 90,945 502,374
Total Property and EQuipment .. ... ... . . e 19,078,823 16,550,760
Accumulated Depreciation .. ... ... {10,823,655) _ (9,868,536)
Net Property and Equipment ... ... . . e 8,255,168 6,682,224
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted Cash .. ..o ot e e e e e 427,500 —
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Net of Accumulated Amortization. . ............... 82,890 209,307
GoodWill . 75,006 75,006
277,000 179,000
7,726 7,726
870,122 471,039
$ 41,877,944 $39,668,551




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

LMBILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Note Payable ... ... . .. .
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt . ... ... . ... . . .. . . . ..
Checks Written in Excess of Bank Balance . ... i
Accounts Payable .. ... ... e e e
Accrued Payroll and Commissions .. ... . ettt
Accrued Health and Dental Claims .. ... ... . . . e e e
Other Accrued Liabilities ... . o e
Income Taxes Payable. . ... ... i i e e
Total Current Liabilities. . .. ..o i

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt {Net of Current Maturities) .. ........... ... ... .. .. . ...
Other Long-Term Liabilities ... ... i i i e
Taotal Long-Term Liabilities . ... ... i i i i e e et
Total Liabilities .. ... e

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock, $1 par value; 1,000,000 Shares Authorized; 250,000 Shares
Issued and Outstanding. . ... .. o i e
Common Stock - $0.01 par value; 9,000,000 Shares Authorized: 2,674,729 Shares
Issued and Qutstanding at December 31, 2006; 2,618,197 Shares Issued and
QOutstanding at December 31, 2005 . ... .. i
Additional Paid-In Capital. . .. ... i i e
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. .. ... ... ...
Retained BEarmings . ... ..o i e e e
Total Shareholders' Equity . ... o oo
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .............. ... ... .. ...

2006

2005

$ 4,694,027

$ 4,228,234

1,524,743 1,207,305
— 1,200,000
10,018,263 9,902,998
3,094,092 2,849,472
325,000 271,104
385,251 324,360

— 317,487
20,041,376 20,300,960
3,509,039 2,714,227
25,670 —
3,534,709 2,714,227
23,576,085 23,015,187
250,000 250,000
26,747 26,182
14,644,901 14,306,602
(23,179} (21,032)
3,403,390 2,091,612
18,301,859 16,653,364
$41,877,944 $39,668,551

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Netsales ... e
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Other income (expense)
Interest income
Miscellaneous income {expense)
Interest expense

Total cther expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

Net income per common share:

Weighted average number of common shares cutstanding used for
basic earnings per common share
Diluted . e

Weighted average number of common share outstanding plus dilutive
common stock options

2006 2005 2004
$105,147,228 $84.215,663 $72,674,159
92,367,508 74,183,435 64,135,186
12,779,720 10,032,228 8,538,973
4,674,826 3,198,654 3,157,212
5,456,077 4,720,860 4,054,326
10,130,903 7,919,514 7,211,538
2,648,817 2,112,714 1,327,435
9,061 2,635 2,120
44,631 (70,059) 15,839
(820,731)  (651,509)  (490,065)
(767.039) _ (718,933) __ (472,106)
1,881,778 1,393,781 855,329
570,000 465,000 268,000
$ 1,311,778 $ 928,781 $ 587.329
$ 0.50 $ 0.36 $ 0.23
2,628,635 _ 2,583,309 2,561,419
$ 0.49 $ 0.36 $ 0.23
2,682,454 2,613,942 2,604,411

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FGR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Earnings Total
Preferred Common Paid-In Comprehensive  (Accumuiated Shareholders’
Stock Stock Capital Income {Loss) Deficit) Equity
BALANCE DECEMBER 31,2003......... $250,000 $25,127 $13,497,339 $(26,688) $ 575,502 $14,321,280
2004 netincome. ................ — — — — 587,329 587,329
Issuance of stock. ................ — 694 621,319 — — 622,013
Translationloss .................. — — — (14,041) — {14,041}
BALANCE DECEMBER 31,2004......... 250,000 25,821 14,118,658 (40,729) 1,162,831 15,516,581
2005 net income. ...... .. o, — — — _ 928,781 928,781
Issuance of stock upon exercise of
stock options . ................. — 36l 187,944 —_ — 188,305
Translationgain.................. — — — 19,697 — 19,697
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2005......... 250,000 26,182 14,306,602 (21,032) 2,091,612 16,653,364
2006 netincome. ......... 0.t — — — —_ 1,311,778 1,311,778
Issuance of stock upon exercise of
stockoptions .................. — 280 126,698 — — 126,978
Issuance of restricted stock . ....... — 285 187,974 — — 188,259
Excess tax benefits from stock-
basedawards.................. — — 23,627 — — 23,627
Translationloss . ................. — — — (2,147} — (2,147)
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2006......... $250,000 $26,747 $14,644,901 $(23,179) $3,403,390 $18,301,859

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net Cash provided by (used

in) operating activities: .. ... . . .

Depreciation. . ... .. ... .

Amortization. . ...
Compensation on stock-based awards
Interest on swap valuation
Deferred taxes

Changes in current operating items: .......... ... . .. o,
Accountsreceivable. . ... .. ... ... ...
INVENIOriES . o
Prepaid expenses and otherassets. ................. ... .. .....
Income taxes receivable/payable
Accounts payable. .. ... . e
Accrued payroll and commissions
Accrued health and dental claims
Other accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES. . . .................. ......
Proceeds from saleof assets. . ....... ... ... ... il i
Restricted Cash .. ... ... ... . . . . . . .
Purchase of property and equipment . .. ... ... ... ... ... ......

Net cash used by investing activities ... .....................

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in checks written in excess of bank balance .. ..........
Net change in line of credit
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-termdebt. . ......... ... . . .
Payments of bond issuecosts. ............ .. ... .. .. ... ... ...
[ssuance of StOCK. . ... . o
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. . ...........

Effect of exchange rate changesoncash........ .. ... ... ... ...... .
INCREASE (DECREASE)} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents—beginningofyear......................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—ENDOF YEAR. . ... ...................

25

2008 2005 2004
$1311,778 $ 928,781 $ 587,329
1,393,360 1,185,599 1,112,210
205,790 397,246 387,776
188,259 — —
25,670 — —
{42,000} (221,000) 166,000
10,632 — {17,169)
(1,355) 80,187 18,786
(46,228) (1,091,882} (2,520,034)
(126,752) (1,613,754} (2,641,159)
{26,132} (66,872} 24,161
(526,461) 668,856 68,265
115,629 4,300,085 1,634,765
245,554 473,533 1,094,620
53,896 20,774 32,816
€0,891 58,598 (172,496)
2,842,531 5,120,151 (324,130)
2,379 — 31,802
(427,500) — —
(2,980,793) (1,427,059} (1,451,928)
{3,405,914) (1,427,059) (1,420,126)
{1,200,000) 250,000 700,000
465,793 (3,294,824) 1,615,867
2,540,926 636,502 788,944
(1,428,676) (1,111,999) {922,373)
(79,373) — —
126,978 188,305 22,013
23,627 — —
449,275 (3,332,012) 2,204,451
{124) (76,740) {5,591}
(114,232) 284,340 454,604
840,123 555,783 101,179
$ 725891 $ 840,123 $ 555,783

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2003, AND 2004

NOTE 1 NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

We manufacture wire harnesses, cables and
electromechanical assemblies, printed circuit boards and
higher-level assemblies for a wide range of commercial
and defense industries. We provide a full “turn-key”
contract manufacturing service to our customers. All
products are built to the customer's design specifications.
Products are sold to customers both domestically and
internationally. We also provide repair service on circuit
boards used in machines in the medical industry.

Our manufacturing facilities are located in Bemidii,
Fairmont, Biue Earth, Merrifield and Baxter, Minnesota as
well as Augusta, Wisconsin, Garner, lowa and Monterrey,
Mexico.

A summary of our significant accounting policies
follows:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expense during the reporting period. Significant items
subject to estimates and assumptions include the
valuation allowance for inventories and allowance for
doubtful accounts. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of our wholly owned subsidiary, Manufacturing
Assembly Solutions of Monterrey, In¢. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, we consider
cash equivalents to be short-term, highly liquid interest-
bearing accounts readily convertible to cash.

Restricted Cash

As of December 31, 2006, restricted cash of
$427,500 is to be used for the purchase of equipment
and facility upgrades at the Blue Earth, Minnesota facility
as reguired by the Industrial Revenue Bond agreement into
which we entered on June 28, 2006 to purchase the Biue
Earth, Minnesota facility. See Note 4,

Accounts Receivable and Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts

We grant credit to customers in the normal course of
business. Accounts receivable are unsecured and are
presented net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.
The allowance for uncollectible accounts was $220,000
and $297,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. We determine our allowance by considering a
number of factors, including the length of time trade
accounts receivable are past due, our previous loss history,
the customers’ current ability to pay their obligations to
us, and the condition of the general economy and the
industry as a whole. We write-off accounts receivable when
they become uncollectible, and payments subsequently
received on such receivables are credited to the allowance
for uncollectible accounts. We do not accrue interest on
past due accounts receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost {first-in,
first-out method) or market (based on the lower of
replacement cost or net realizable value). Costs include
material, labor, and overhead required in the warehousing
and production of our products. Invenfory reserves are
maintained for the estimated value of the inventory that




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

NOTE 1 MATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

may have a lower value than stated or quantities in excess
of future production needs. Inventory is shown net of
reserve for excess and obsolete inventory as follows:

2006 2005
Raw materials . ... ... $11.161,883 $10,616,894
Work in process. ... .. 3,339,325 4,423,892
Finished goods. ... ... 2,770,670 2,027,118
Reserves. ........... {1,295,656) {1,218,434)
Total . ............ $15,976,222 $15,849,470

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements and

Goodwill and Finite Life Intangibie Assets

major renewals are capitalized, while maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets
are retired or disposed of, the assets and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of their estimated use lives ar the remaining lease terms.
All other property and equipment are depreciated by the
straight-line method of depreciation over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings. ............. .. ... .. ... ...... 39 Years
Leasehold improvements . . ............... 3-7 Years
Manufacturing equipment . ... ... ... . ... 5-7 Years
Office and other equipment. .............. 3-7 Years

We account for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
Board No. ("SFAS") 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which requires that goodwill and certain indefinite-lived
assets not be amortized but evaluated annually for impairment. Finite life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Finite life intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Bond Issue Costs ... ...
Non-compete . ........ .. ... .o
Other intangibles........ ... .. ... . .. ...

Totals

Non-compete . . ... . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
Other intangibles. ....... ... ... .. . . . ...

Totals

Amortization expense related to these assets is as
follows:

Year ended December 31, 2006 ........ $205,790
Year ended December 31, 2005 ........ 397,246
Year ended December 31, 2004 .. ... ... 387,776

Decembar 31, 2006
Gross Accumulated

Estimated Net Boak

Lives Carrying Amortization Value

(Years} Amount Amount Amount
ca 15 % 79,373 % 2649 £76,724
ce 4 1,626,384 1,526,384 —
Cee 3 37,059 30,893 6,166
- $1642816 $1,559,926 $82,890

December 31, 2005
Estimated Gross Accumulated Net Book
Lives Carrying Amortization Value
{Years) Amaount Amount Amount

.. 4 $1,526,384 $1,335600 $190,784
.. 3 37,059
.. $1,563,443 $1.354,136 $209,307

18,536 18,523

Estimated future annual amortization expense
refated to these assets is approximately $11,000 in
2007 and $5,000 per year thereafter.

27




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

NOTE T NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment Analysis

We evaluate property and equipment and intangible
assets with finite lives for impairment, as well as the
related amortization periods, to determine whether
adjustments to these amounts or useful lives are required
based on current events and circumstances. The
evaluation is based on our projection of the undiscounted
future operating cash fiows of the underlying assets. To
the extent such projections indicate that future
undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the
carrying amounts of related assets, a charge is recorded
to reduce the carrying amount to the asset's estimated
fair value.

Preferred Stock

Preferred stock issued is non-cumulative and
nonconvertible. The holders of the preferred stock are
entitled to a non-cumulative dividend of 12% when and
as declared. In liquidation, holders of preferred stock
have preference to the extent of $1.00 per share plus
dividends accrued but unpaid. No preferred stock
dividends were declared or paid during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon shipment of products to
customers, when title has passed, all contractual
obligations have been satisfied and collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. In the normal
course of business we enter into a number of contracts
with customers under which we provide engineering
services on a per project basis. Revenue for these
services is recognized upon completion of the
engineering process, usually upon initial shipment of the
product. Revenues from repair services are recognized
upon shipment of related equipment to customers. Our
shipping and handling costs charged to our customers
are included in net sales, while the correspending
shipping expenses are included in cost of goods sold.
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Product warranties

We provide limited warranty for the replacement or
repair of defective product at no cost to our customers
within a specified time period after the sale. We make no
other guarantees or warranties, expressed or implied, of
any nature whatsoever as to the goods including without
timitation, warranties to merchantability, fit for a
particular purpose or nan-infringement of patent or the
like unless agreed upon in writing. We estimate the costs
that may be incurred under our limited warranty and
reserve based on actual historical warranty claims
coupled with an analysis of unfulfilled claims at the
balance sheet date. Our warranty claims costs are not
material given the nature of our products and services
which normally result in repair and return in the same
accounting period.

Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to operations as
incurred. Total amount charged to expense was
$168,448, $173,464 and $197,914, for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and
liability method. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized annually for differences between
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible
amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and
rates applicable to the periods in which the differences
are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of all financial instruments
approximate their fair values. The carrying amounts for
cash, restricted cash, receivables, payables, accrued
liabilities and the line of credit approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these instruments.
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NOTE 1 NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Based on the borrowing rates currently available to us for
bank loans with similar terms and average maturities, the
carrying value of long-term debt approximate their fair
value,

Stock Based Compensation

Our 2006 consolidated financial statements reflect
the impact of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123R"). In accordance with the modified
prospective transition method, our consolidated financial
statements for prior periods have not been restated to
reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R.
Stock-hased compensation expense recognized under
SFAS 123R was $188,259 ($0.05 per diluted common
share) for 2006. See Note 9 for additional information.

Derivative Financial Instruments

SFAS No.133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended,
defines derivatives and requires that they be carried at
fair value on the balance sheet. On June 28, 2006, we
entered into an interest rate swap agreement to
effectively convert our industrial revenue bond debt from
a variable rate to a fixed rate. The change in market value
of an interest rate swap is recognized on the balance
sheet and by a charge or credit to interest expense.
Further information related to our interest rate swap is
disclosed in Note 4.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed
using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted income per common share is
computed using the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding and potential common
shares from the assumed exercise of stock options
outstanding during the period using the treasury stock
method.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Securities & Exchange
Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 108
(SAB 108) “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements”. SAB 108 requires
that public companies utilize a “dual-approach” to
assessing the quantitative effects of financial
misstatements. This dual approach includes both an
income statement focused assessment and a balance
sheet focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108
must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of
SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our financial
statements.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157 (SFAS
157), “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS 157 establishes
a commaon definition for fair value to be applied to U.S.
GAAP guidance requiring use of fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands
disclosure about such fair value measurements. SFAS
157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We are currently assessing the
impact of SFAS 157 may have on our censolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48}, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an Interpretation of FASB Statement 109", which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions.
FIN 48 provides that the tax effects from an uncertain
tax position can be recognized in our consolidated
financial statements, only if the position 1s more likely
than not to be sustained on audit, based on the technical
merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are
effective for our fiscal 2007 year end, with the
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings.
We have evaluated the impact of adopting FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007 and found that we presently do not
anticipate any impact on our consolidated financial
statements.
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In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 47, or "FIN 47,” which clarifies terminofogy in FASB
Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations. FIN 47 clarifies when an entity has
sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair
value of an asset retirement obligation. FIN 47 was
effective for us in fiscal 2006. We adopted FIN 47 on
January 1, 2006 with no material impact to our
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151,
Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4. The amendments made by the SFAS No. 151
require that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight, handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) be
recognized as current-period charges. This Statement
requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to
inventory based on the normal capacity of production
facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005. We adopted SFAS No. 151 on January 1, 2006
with no material impact to our consolidated financial
statements.

Long-lived assets by country are as follows:

2006

Net property and equipment .. ....................
Otherassets .. ..o i e

2005

Net property and equipment ... ....................
Otherassets . ... e

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currency is considered the functicnal currency
for our operations outside the United States. Assets and
liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates.
Income and expense items are translated at average rates
of exchange prevailing during the year. Translation
adjustments are recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in shareholders’
equity. Foreign exchange transaction gains and losses

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

We paid $1,090,540 and $30,716 in income taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, No income taxes were paid for the year
ended December 31, 2004. We paid interest expense
of $746,519, $645,513 and $488,020 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

During 2004, we acquired all of the business assets
of Zachariah and Lundbergh, Inc. (Z&L) for $250,000
payable over 4 years. During 2004, we exchanged
63,407 shares of our common stock in satisfaction of a
note payable to SAE Assembly, LLC, incurred in
connection with our 2002 acquisition of our
manufacturing facility in Mexico.

Segment Reporting information

Our results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, represent a single
segment referred to as Contract Manufacturing. Export
sales represent approximately 5% of consolidated sales
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004.

United States Mexico Total

$7,700,481 $554,687 $8,255,168
862,396 7,726 870,122

$5,995,465 $686,759 $6,682,224
271,529 199,510 471,039

attributable to exchange rate movements on
intercompany receivables and payables not deemed to be
of a long-term investment nature are recorded in
miscellaneous income (expense).

NOTEZ MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
and trade accounts receivable. With regard to cash, we
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NOTE 2 MAJIOR CUSTOMERS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
(Continued)

maintain cur excess cash balances in checking and
money market accounts at three high-credit quality
financial institutions. We have not experienced any losses
in any of the short-term investiment instruments we have
used for excess cash balances. We do not require
collateral on our receivables. Historically, we have not
suffered significant losses with respect to trade accounts
receivable.

Twao divisions of General Electric, Co. {G.E.)
combined accounted for 10% or more of our net sales
during the past three years. G.E.'s Medical and
Transportation Divisions together accounted for 17%,
17% and 15% of our net sales for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Accounts receivable from G.E.'s Medical and
Transportation Divisions at December 31, 2006 and
2005 represented 14% and 12% of our total accounts
receivable, respectively. Additionally, Northrop Grumman
Corp. accounted for 10% of our net sales for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Accounts
receivable from Northrop Grumman at December 31,
2006 and 2005 represented 15% and 9% of our tota)
accounts receivable, respectively. Historically, we have
not experienced significant losses on customer receivable
collections tn any particular industry or geographic area.

NOTE3 ACCRUED HEALTH AND DENTAL CLAIMS

We have partially self-insured our employee health
and dental plans, We have contracted with two separate
administrative service companies to supervise and
administer the programs and act as representatives. Our
health plan insures for excessive or unexpected claims
and is liable for claims not to exceed $80,000 per
individual per plan year and an estimated aggregate
amount of $3,672,000 for the plan year ending
August 2007. Qur dental plan pays claims based on
actual amounts incurred. Estimated unpaid claims for
incurred heaith and dental services of $325,000 and
$271,104 are reflected as accrued liabilities on the
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balance sheet at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

HOTE4 LONG-TERM DEBT

On Aprit 28, 2006 we entered into a 6th
amendment to our credit agreement with Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. (WFB) increasing our line of credit
arrangement from $8 million to $10 million and
extending the maturity dates of the line of credit to
Apnit 30, 2008 and our real estate term note to July 30,
2011. On February 2, 2007, we entered into a 7th
amendment to our credit agreement with WFB increasing
our tine of credit arrangement from $10 mitlion to $15
million and extending the maturity date of the line of
credit to April 30, 2009.

Additionally, in connection with the acquisition of
Suntren's Midwest Qperations discussed in Note 13, the
7th amendment increased our real estate term note
balance of $1,680,555 at February 2, 2007 to
$3,348,750 and extended the maturity date to May 31,
2012. Per the 7th amendment, both the line of credit
and real estate term note are subject to variations in the
LIBOR rates. The 7th amendment funded the lowa
acquisition on February 4, 2007. The line of credit and
other installment debt with WFB contain certain
covenants, which, among cther things, require us to
adhere to regular reporting requirements, abige by annual
shareholder dividend limitations, maintain certain
financial ratios, and limit the amount of annual capital
expenditures. The availability under the line is subject to
barrowing base requirements, and advances are at the
discretion of the lender. The line is secured by
substantially all of our assets.

During 2006 and 2005 our line of credit bore
interest at prime (8.25% at December 31, 2006 and
7.25% at December 31, 2005). The weighted-average
interest rate on our tine of credit was 7.77% and 6.20%
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. We had borrowings of $4,694,027 and
$4,228,234 outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.
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A summary of long-term debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Description

2005 2005

Notes payable—Wells Fargo Bank Minnescta, N.A., two notes bear interest at Wells
Fargo prime rate, four notes bear interest at 4.21% {which was paid off in 2006},
6.30%, 7.31% and 0.25% below prime (8.00% as of December 31, 2006 and
7.00% as of December 31, 2005), respectively; combined monthly principal
payments of $112,567 plus interest, maturities range from February 2007 to

July 2011; secured by substantially all assets ...........
Bonds payable(1} ... ... ... . e

$ 3,109,782 $ 3,338,028

Subordinated notes payable—Other, interest at 6.5%; combined monthly payments of

$5,227 through March 2007; secured by substantially all assets. .. ...............

Total long-termdebt ...... ... .. . o
Current maturities of long-termdebt .................
Long-term debt—net of current maturities .. ............

...................... 1,440,000 —

463,036 498,606
...................... 20,964 84,898
...................... 5,033,782 3,921,532
...................... (1,524,743) _(1,207,305)

$ 3,509,039 $ 2,714,227

(1) On June 28, 2006, we entered into an industrial revenue bond payable to the City of Blue Earth, Minnesota. The bond
payable of $1,440,000 at December 31, 2006 bears interest based on the USD-BMA MN Tax Exempt Municipal
Bond Swap Index, which we swapped for a fixed interest rate and has a maturity date of June 1, 2021 where principal
is payable annually on June 1. The funds from the bond were used to purchase the facility in Blue Earth, Minnesota.
The remaining funds of $427,500 are restricted for the purchase of equipment and facility upgrades per the
agreement. Maturity requirements are approximately $130,000 in each of the next five years and $800,000

thereafter.

On June 28, 2006, we entered into an interest rate
swap agreement with a notional amount of $1,440,000 to
effectively convert our industrial revenue bond debt from a
variable rate to a fixed rate of 4.07% for five years,
maturing on June 28, 2011. The fair value of the swap at
December 31, 2006 was recorded as a long-term liability
of $25,670 and was additional interest expense in the
statement of income.

Included in the maturity requirements schedule below
is the new funded debt of approximately $1,669,000 as of
February 2, 2007 per the 7th amendment to our credit
agreement with WFB with the adjusted maturity date of
May 31, 2012. Maturity requirements are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2007 . $1,577,000
2008 .. .. e 890,000
2000, . . e 488,000
2010 . . e 348,000
2011 .. e 348,000
Future ... oo 3,037,000
$6,688,000

NOTES OPERATING LEASES

We have entered into various operating leases for
production and office equipment, office space and
buildings. We have the option to purchase various pieces
of equipment upon lease expiration at fair market value.
We presently lease buildings in Baxter, MN on a month-to-
month basis. The lease far the manufacturing facility in
Mexico provides us the option of two three-year renewals
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NOTES OPERATING LEASES {Continued)

extending the lease through 2010. As part of the
acquisition of the Garner, lowa operations on February 4,
2007, we were assigned the existing building lease, which
expires in June 2008.

Rent expense, which includes amounts for other short
term leases, for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, amounted to $862,955, $754,394 and
$676,063, respectively. Sublease income amounted to

NOTEG INCOME TAXES

$500 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $3,000
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,

Approximate future minimum lease payments are as
follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount

2007 . $392,000
2008, . 254,000
2009 ... .. 124,000
2010, .. . 60,000
Total ... ... . . $830,000

The income tax expense for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 consists of the following:

Current taxes—Federal .. ... ... ... ... ... ......
Currenttaxes—State ........ ... .. o i
Current taxes—Foreign . ....... ... .. . ... ... ......
Deferred taxes—Federal . ........ .. ... ... ... ... ...
Deferred taxes—State . ........ ... .. ... . oLl
Deferred taxes—Foreign .. ......... ... ... .........

Income taxexpense. ............................

The statutory rate reconciliation for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Statutory federal tax provision ......................
State income taxes, net of federal benefit........... ..
Effect of foreign operations. .. ........ ... .. ... ... ...
Incometaxcredits........ ... ... .. oo

2006 2005 2004
........... $506,000 § 580,000 $ 60,000
........... 75,000 75,000 16,000
........... 31,000 31,000 26,000
........... {47,000} (204,000) 163,000
........... 5,000 {16,000) 4,000
........... — (1,000) (1,000)
........... $570,000 $ 465,000 $268,000

2006 2005 2004
............ $ 640,000 $474,000 $291,000
............ 49,000 63,000 25,000
............ 11,000 5,000 (5,000)
............ (140,000}  (81,000) (84,000)
.............. 10,000 4,000 41,000

$ 570,000 $465000 $268,000

Income from operations before income taxes was derived from the following sources:

Domestic . ... .. o
FOreign .. ... ... .

2006 2005 2004

............. 1,852,000 1,318,000 764,000
............. 30,000 76,000 91,000
............. 1,882,000 1,394,000 855,000
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2006 and 2005, consist of the following:

2006 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . .. ... . i i i e $ 83,000 $ 113,000
VBN Oy FESEIVES . o ettt e e 486,000 463,000
Accrued Vacalion . ... . o e e e 287,000 316,000
Health iNSUIanCe MSeIVE. Lttt i et et e et et eanns 144,000 103,000
Non-compete amortization . ...... ... i e e 410,000 378,000
Stock-based cOmMpensation . . ... . i 43,000 —
011 =) U 42,000 16,000
Defarred tax aSSe S, . . oo e e e e e 1,492,000 1,389,000
P DEIT BRI SES . . &ttt ittt e e e e (167,000) {86,000)
Property and equipiment ... ... e (192,000) (212,000)
Deferred tax liabilities . ... ..ottt e (359,000) {298,000)
Net deferred tax assels . .. .. .. o e $1,133,000 $1,091,000
Net short-term deferred $ax @ssets . .. ...t e e $ 856,000 $ 912,000
Net long-term deferred tax assets. . ... .. oot i 277,000 179,000
Net deferred 1ax @55ets .. . ottt i e e e $1,133,000 $1,091,000

We have determined that it is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will be realized, principally through
anticipated taxable income in future tax years. As a result, we have determined that establishing a valuation allowance on

our deferred tax assets is not necessary.

NOTE7 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive
income (loss) includes income (loss) resulting from foreign currency translations. The details of comprehensive income are

as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Net income, asreported .. .. ... . i e $1,311,778 $928,781 $587,329
Other comprehensive income (loss):. . ... ... oot (2,147) 19,697 (14,041)
CompPrehensive iNCOME . .. ..t vttt $1,309,631 $948,478  $573,288

NOTES  401(K) RETIREMENT PLAN

We have a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) for our
employees. The Plan is a defined contribution plan
covering all of our employees except for employees covered
by a collective bargaining agreement and non-resident
aliens earning non-U.S. source income. Employees are
eligible to participate in the Plan after completing six

manths of service and attaining the age of 21. Employees
are allowed to contribute up to 60% of their wages to the
Pian. We match 25% of the employees’ contribution up to
6% of covered compensation. We made contributions of
$167,031, $153,171 and $120,089 during the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively.
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NOTE 9 GAINSHARING INCENTIVE, STOCK OPTION AND RESTRIGTED
STOCK PLANS

Employee Gainsharing

During 1993, we adopted an employee gainsharing
plan (the “Plan™). The purpose of the Plan is to provide a
bonus for increased output, impreved quality and
productivity and reduced costs. We have authorized
50,000 common shares 10 be available under this Plan. In
accordance with the terms of the Plan, employees can
acquire newly issued shares of commen stock far 90% of
the current market value. During 2006, 2005 and 2004,
32, 250 and 52 common shares, respectively, were issued
in connection with this plan. Through December 31,
20086, 21,855 commoen shares have been issued under
this Plan.

is 300,000. On May 3, 2005, the shareholders approved
the 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “2005 Plan")
and eliminated the remaining 172,500 available option
shares under the 2003 Plan effective February 23, 2005.
The total number of shares of common stock that may be
granted under the 2005 Plan is 200,000, of which
39,500 remain available for grant at December 31, 2006.
The 2005 Plan provides that option shares granted coeme
from our authorized but unissued common stock. The
price of the option shares granted under the plan will not
be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common
shares on the date of grant. Options are generally
exercisable after one or more years and expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes information about
stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Qutstanding Exercisable Remaining
. . Exercise Prices 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 Contractual Life
in 1992, we approved the adoption of a fixed stock $3.125 22.000 2% 000 3.16 Years
based compensation plan. The purpose of the Plan is to 4.000 2 000 2’000 342 Years
promote our interests and our shareholders interests by 5.000 40'000 40'000 0.14 Years
providing officers, directors and other key employees with 5975 20'000 20'000 .38 Years
additional incentive and the opportunity, through common 5 500 4 000 4.000 200 Years
stock ownership, to increase their proprietary interest in us 5740 20.000 20.000 7 84 Years
and their personal interest in our continued success. In 7.110 4'000 4,000 5.8]1 Years
February 2003, we reached the maximum options allowed 7 220 50'000 50’000 6.12 Years
to be granted under the plan. 7.440 73,500 24,500  9.17 Years
During 2003, our shareholders approved the adoption 7.460 20,000 20,000 7.34 Years
of the Nortech Systems Incorporated 2003 Stock Option 7.790 67,000 —  9.84 Years
Plan (the "2003 Plan"). The total number of shares of 8.000 69,000 69,000  6.95 Years
common stock that may be granted under the 2003 Plan 391,500 275,500
Following is a summary of the stock option plan activity during 2006, 2005 and 2004.
2005 2004
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Options outstanding, beginning of year ., . . . . 287,000 $6.27 306,800 %6.21 272,800 $6.10

Optionsexercised ...................... (28,000 453 (35,800) 5.22 {6,000) 3.63
Optionscancelled ...................... (8,000) 8.00 {4,000} 6.00 — —
Optionsgranted. . ....................., 140,500 7.61 20,000 b.28 40,000 6.60
Options outstanding, end of year .. ...... .. 391,500 %$6.84 287,000 $6.27 306,800 $6.21
Option price range of exercised options. .. .. $3.125-5.00 $4.00-5.25 $ 363
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NOTE 9 GAINSHARING INCENTIVE, STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED
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The Financiat Accounting Standards Board (FASE)
has issued Statement No. 123R {SFAS 123R), “Share-
Based Payment: An Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123,” which requires companies to recognize in the
income statement the grant-date fair value of stock options
and other equity-based compensation issued to employees.
In adopting SFAS 123R, as of January 1, 2006, we used
the modified prospective transition method.

Under the modified prospective transition method,
awards that are granted, modified or settled after the date
of adoption will be measured and accounted for in
accordance with SFAS 123R. Compensation cost for
awards granted prior to, but not vested, as of the date
SFAS 123R was adopted are based on the grant date
attributes originally used to value those awards for pro
forma purposes under SFAS 123. Our ceonsolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. In
accordance with the modified prospective transition
method, the consolidated financial statements for prior
periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not

include, the impact of SFAS 123R. Share-based
compensation expense before income taxes recognized
under SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006
was $188,259.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we applied Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in
accounting for options and the disciosure-only provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(SFAS 123}, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
Accordingly, no stock-based compensation expense for
stock options was recognized in our consolidated
statements of income prior to 2006, as the option exercise
price was equal to the market price of our stock on the
date of grant.

On November 15, 2005, our Board of Directors
accelerated the vesting of the then outstanding and
unvested stock options. Had these vesting periods not
been accelerated, under SFAS 123R we would have
recognized approximately $370,000 in cumulative
additional expense spread over five years beginning in
fiscal 2006.

Had compensation cost for the our stock option plan been determined pursuant to SFAS 123 in 2005 and 2004, net
income and earnings per common share on a pro forma basis would have been as follows:

Net income, as reported

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effects
Pro forma net income

Earnings per common share:

Basic—as reported. ... it e

Basic—pro forma

Diluted-—as reported
Diluted—pro forma

SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the fair
value of share-based awards on the date of grant using an
option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award
that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense

36

2005 2004
$928,781 $587,329
............................. (500,196) (125,450)
$428,585 $461,879
$ 036 $ 023
$ 017 ¢ 0.18
$ 036 $ 0.23
$ 016 $ 0.18

in the consolidated statement of operations on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service periods. Share-based
compensation expense for share-based awards granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005, is
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based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 123. For options granted
subsequent to December 31, 2005, compensation
expense is based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with SFAS 123R. Because share-based
compensation expense is based on awards that are
ultimately expected to vest, share-based compensation
expense will be reduced to account for estimated
forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those
estimates. In the pro forma information required under
SFAS 123 for periods prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted
for forfeitures as they occurred.

During 2006, a total of 140,500 cptions were granted
to our management and directors with the exercise price
equaling the closing price of the common shares on each
respective grant date. To calculate the option-based
compensation under SFAS 123R, we used the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model, which we had previously
used for the valuation of option-based awards for our pro
forma information required under SFAS 123 for periods
prior to fiscal 2006. Our determination of fair value of
option-based awards on the date of grant using the Black-

Scholes model is affected by our stock price as well as
assumptions regarding a number of subjective variables as
noted in the following table. These variables include, but
are not limited to, our expected stock price volatility over
the term of the awards, risk-free interest rate, and the
expected life of the options. The risk-free interest rate is
based on a treasury instrument whose term is consistent
with the expected life of our stock options. The expected
volatility, holding period, and forfeitures of options are
based on our historical experience.

2006

2005 2004

Expected
volatility. .. .. ..
Expected
dividends. .. ...
Expected term
{inyears)......
Risk-free rate .. ..

4.55-4.85%

52.20 - 61.60%% 69.50% 70.50%

0% 0% 0%

5-6 10 10
4.37% 4.62%

Total compensation expense related to stock options
included in our statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $118,356. For all grants, the
amount of compensation expense to be recognized is
adjusted for an estimated forfeiture rate, which is based

on historical data.

A summary of option activity under the Plan as of December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is

presented below.

Qutstanding—January 1, 2006 ...................

Granted. ... ... ... . e
Exercised ... ... .. e
Forfeited. ... ... .o
QOutstanding—December 31,2006 ................

Exercisable on December 31, 2006................
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Weighted-
Weighted-  Average
Average  Remaining
Exercise Contractual  Aggrepate
Price Per Term Intrinsic
Options Share {in years) Value
............. 287,000 $6.27
............. 140,500 7.61
............. {28,000) 453
............. (8,000) 8.00
............. 391,500 $6.84 6.90 $357,710
............. 275,500 $6.50 5.79 $345950




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

NOTE 9 GAINSHARING INCENTIVE, STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED
STOCK PLANS (Continued)

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options
granted during 2006, 2005, and 2004 were $4.29,
$4.14, and $5.23, respectively. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 were $78,490, $21,855 and
$25,230.

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately
$477,000 of unrecognized compensation expense related
to unvested option awards that we expect to recognize over
a weighted average period of 2.48 years. The total fair
value of shares vested during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $105,720.

A summary of the status of our nonvested shares as of
December 31, 2006, and changes during the year ended
December 31, 20086, is presented below:

Weigted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Nonvested Shares Shares Value
Nonvested at January 1,

2006 ..o — $ —
Granted ................... 140,500 4.29
Vested ..........c0vvenn.. {24,500) 4.32
Nonvested at December 31,

2006 ... ... i, 116,000 $4.29

Cash received from option exercise under all share-
based payment arrangements for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $126,978. SFAS 123R also
requires that the tax benefit from the exercise of options
be reflected in the statement of cash flows as a cash
inflow from financing activities. Prior to the adoption of
SFAS 123R, these tax benefits have been reflected as a
cash inflow from operations. The actual tax benefit
realized for the tax deductions from the option exercise of
the share-based payment arrangements totaled $87,839
for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Restricted Stock

In March 2006, 28,500 shares of restricted common
stock were granted to our management and directors. This
benefit was valued at the market price of the stock on the
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date of grant. These awards vest over a three-year term and
are expensed ratably over the same period. The
arrangements contained an acceleration condition whereby
if we attain certain financial measurements, the awards
would vest in their entirety on December 31, 2006, The
acceleration conditions were not met, thus the awards will
continue to vest ratably over the full vesting period as
stated in the agreement. Total compensation expense
related to restricted stock included in the statements of
income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
$69,900. The following is the status of our restricted
shares as of December 31, 2006, including changes
during the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted-Average

Restricted Grant Date Fair
Shares Value
Outstanding—January 1,

2006. .. ... .. . — $ —
Granted—March 7, 2006 ..... 28,500 7.44
QOutstanding—December 31,

2006......... . e 28,500 $7.44
Exercisable on December 31,

2006......... ... e 9,500 $7.44

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately
$140,000 of unrecognized compensation expense related
to unvested restricted stock awards, which we expect to
recognize over a weighted average period of 2.0 years.

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings and
claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. |n our
opinion, the amount of any ultimate liability with respect
to these actions will not materially affect our consolidated
financial statements or results of operations.

Executive Life Insurance Plan

During 2002, we set up an Executive Bonus Life
Insurance Plan (the “Plan”}) for our key employees
{(“participants”). Pursuant to the Plan, we will pay a bonus
to officer participants 15% and all other participants 10%
of the participants’ base annual salary, as well as an
additional bonus to cover federal and state taxes incurred




NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

by the participants, The participants are required to
purchase life insurance and retain ownership of the life
insurance policy once it is purchased. The Plan provides a
five-year graded vesting schedule in which the participants
vest at a rate of 20% each year. Should a participant
terminate employment prior to the fifth year of vesting,
that participant may be required to reimburse us for any
unvested amounts, under certain circumstances. Charges
to income under the Plan were $290,000, $228,000 and
$167,375 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Change of Controf Agreements

During 2002, we entered into Change of Control
Agreements (the "Agreement{s)"} with certain key

NOTE 11 EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

executives (“the Executive(s)"). The Agreements provide
an inducement for each Executive to remain as an
employee in the event of any proposed or anticipated
change of control in the organization, including facilitating
an orderly transition, and to provide econemic security for
the Executive after a change in control has occurred.

In the event of an involuntarily termination, each
Executive would receive their base salary, annual bonus at
time of termination, and continued participation in health,
disability and life insurance plans for a period of three
years for officers and two years for all other participants.
Participants would also receive professional cutplacement
services up to $10,000 if applicable. Each Agreement
remains in full force until the Executive terminates
employment or we terminate the employment of
the Executive.

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the diluted per common share

computations.

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Net Income

Weighted average common shares outstanding. ...............
Stock OptiONS . . oo

Restricted Stock

Weighted average commoan shares for diluted earnings per

common share

Diluted earnings per commonshare*........................ $

2006 2005 2004
$1,311,778 $ 928781 $ 587,329
2,628,635 2,583,309 2,561,419
45,778 30,633 42,992
8,041 — —
2,682,454 2,613,942 2,604,411
0.49 % 036 §% 0.23

*  For 2006, 2005 and 2004, there were approximately 42,962, 43,302 and 48,409 shares, respectively, which were
not “in the money” and therefore were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because to

include them would be antidilutive.
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NOTE 12 QUARTERLY SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Total

373172006 6/30/2006 9/30/2006 12/31/2006 YTD
Netsales ...................... $26,017,619 $26,173,559 $25,288,095 $27,667,955 105,147,228
Grossprofit .................... 3,158,751 3,413,640 2,957,403 3,249,926 12,779,720
Netincome .................... 263,948 308,665 304,587 434,578 1,311,778
Basic income per common share . .. 0.10 0.12 0.12 0.16 0.50
Diluted income per common share . 0.10 0.11 0.12 0.16 0.49

Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Quarter Ending Total

3/31/2005 6/30/2005 9/30/2005 12/31/2005 Y10
NetSales....................... $19,067,602 $20,562,916 $20,919,151 $23,666,094 84,215,663
GrossProfit ..................... 2,364,533 2,588,446 2,554,243 2,525,006 10,032,228
Netlncome ..................... 98,892 138,961 260,357 430,571 928,781
Basic income per common share. . .. 0.04 0.05 0.10 017 0.36
Diluted income per common share .. 0.04 Q.05 0.10 0.17 0.36

NOTE 13 SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)

Acquisition of Suntron's Midwest Operations

financial statements since the date of acquisition was after
December 31, 2006.

The following table presents the acquisition cost of

On February 4, 2007, we purchased substantially all
of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Suntron’s
Midwest Operations located in Garner, lowa. This
operation is an Electronics Manufacturer Service (EMS)
provider of printed circuit board assemblies, box build

the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, on an
unaudited basis, based on the preliminary estimated
values at time of acquisition:

, , . . o . Accounts receivable . ................. $1,981,000

assemblies and repair services. This acquisition will .
L o Inventories ................ ... i, 2,143,000

strengthen our capabilities in printed circuit board
bli d high level complete box build assemblies Other current assets.................. 11,000
ashs.alam |ers]s.an '8 eketco rﬁ nts in th iculture and Property, plant and equipment ......... 442,000
W'| ' e;’pe 'T‘gd”e‘t“‘.mar et segments In the agncutture an INEANGIDIES « .\ v eeeee el 1,033,000
oll and gas Industries. Accounts payable assumed ............ (766,000)
The purchase price including the assumption of Accrued compensation and benefits

$845,000 of liabilities of the seller, was $5,610,000 and assumed .. ... ... {(79,000)
was funded by cash of $4,765,000 and an amendment in Net assets acquired ................ $4,765,000

our credit agreements with Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, increasing our Real Estate Term Notes and
Revolving Line of Credit. The purchase price at time of

close was based on an estimate of the working capital level

and is subject to an adjustment, reducing the purchase
price based upon the final settlement of the working

capital level. In addition, the Purchase agreement calls for

a contingent earn-out of up to $600,000 if certain
revenue levels are achieved. The earn-out adjustment, if
earned would be settled on January 31, 2008. The lowa
operations results are not included in the consolidated
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NOTE 13 SUBSEQUENT EVENT {UNAUDITED) (Continued)

The table below reflects cur unaudited pro forma
combined results of operations as if the acquisition had
taken place as of January 1, 2006:

Pro Forma
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2006

{unaudited)
NetSales........................ $117,745,000
Net Income . ..................... $ 1,398,000
Basic earnings per common share . . . . $ 0.53
Diluted earnings per common share. . . $ 0.52
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The pro forma unaudited results do not purport to be
indicative of the results which would have been obtained
had the acquisition been completed as of the beginning of
the earliest period presented. Furthermore, the purchase
price allocation is preliminary and subject to change. Once
the final purchase price allocation is determined, the
unaudited pro forma combined results of operations
presented above may change.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary
Wayzata, Minnesota

Our audit were made for the purposes of forming an opinion on the basic 2006, 2005 and 2004 consolidated
financial statements of Nortech Systems Incorporated and Subsidiary taken as a whole. The consolidated supplemental
schedule Il is presented for purposes of complying the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and is not a part of the
basic consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits
of the 2006, 2005 and 2004 basic consclidated financial statements and, in our opinicon, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

fsf MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 7, 2007
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NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE ll—Valuation and Qualitying Accounts
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

Additions
Balance at Charged Balance at
Beginning to Costs End of
Classification of Year And Expenses Add (Deduct} Year
Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts .. ................ $ 296,563 180,877 (257,750) $ 219,690
Inventory Reserve . ........... ..., $1,218,434 900,680 {823,458) $1,295,656
Self-insurance Accrual .. ... . $ 271,104 3,861,867 (3,807,971) % 325,000
Year Ended December 31, 2005:
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts .................. $ 280,146 122,088 (105,671) $ 296,563
Inventory Reserve ... ......... . ... ... $1,219,200 897,199 {897,965) $1,218,434
Self-insurance Accrual .......... .. $ 250,330 3,295866 (3,274,792) $ 271,104
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts . ................ . $ 371,690 166,989 (258,533) $ 280,146
Inventory Reserve ....... ... .. i $1,319,250 829,918 {929,968) $1,219,200
Self-insurance Accrual .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... ..., $ 217,614 3,914,882 (3,882,066) $ 250,330
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in reports filed under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the specified time
periods. As of the end of the period covered by this report,
our management, including the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure contrels and procedures. Based on the
evaluation, which disclosed no significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer each concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective.

We are currently in the process of reviewing and
formalizing our internal controls and procedures for
financial reporting in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules implementing the internal
control reporting requirements included in Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 {“Section 404”). Changes
have been and will be made to our internal controls over
financial reporting as a result of these efforts. We are
dedicating significant resources, including senior
management time and effort, and incurring substantial
costs in connection with our ongoing Section 404
assessment. We are currently documenting and testing
internal controls and considering whether any
improvements are necessary for maintaining an effective
control environment. The evaluation of internal controls is
being conducted under the direction of senior
management in consultation with an independent third
party consulting firm. In addition, senior management is
regularly discussing the results of testing and any
proposed improvements to the control environment with
the Audit Committee. We expect to assess controls and
procedures on a regular basis. We will continue to work to
improve controls and procedures and to educate and train
employees on the existing controls and procedures in
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connection with the efforts to maintain an effective
controls infrastructure.

ITEM9B.  OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART It
ITEM10.  DIRECTORS AND EXECGUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding the directors and executive
officers of the Registrant will be included in the
Registrant’s 2006 proxy statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later than
April 30, 2007 and said portions of the proxy statement
are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensation of the
Registrant will be included in the Registrant’s 2006 proxy
statements to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than April 30, 2007 and said
portions of the proxy statement are incorporated herein by
reference.
ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT

Information regarding security ownership of certain
beneficial owners and management of the Registrant will
be included in the Registrant's 2006 proxy statements to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than April 30, 2007 and said portions of the proxy
statements are incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding executive compensation plans
{including individual compensation arrangements) as of
the end of the last fiscal year, on two categories of equity
compensation plans (that is, plans that have been
approved by security holders and plans that have not been
approved by security holders) will be inctuded in the
Registrant’'s 2006 proxy statements to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission no later than
April 30, 2007 and said portions of the proxy statements
are incorporated herein by reference.




The following table provides information about our equity compensation plans (including individual compensation
arrangements) as of December 31, 2006.

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
Number of future issuance
securities to be under equity
issued upon campensation
the exercise of Weighted-average plans (excluding
outstanding exercise price of securities reflected
options, warrants  outstanding options, in the first
Plan category and rights(1) warrants and rights column){2)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders . .......... 391,500 $6.842 39,500
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders .. ... ... 0 0 0
TOtal . o 391,500 $6.842 39,500

(1) Represents common shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options granted under our 1992 Employee Stock
Incentive Plan (the “1992 Plan") and the 2003 Stock Option Plan (the “2003 Plan”) and the 2005 incentive
Compensation Plan (the "2005 Plan”).

(2) Represents common shares remaining available under the 2005 Plan.

ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVIGES

The information required by this item is included The information required by this Item is included
under the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Executive under the caption “Miscellaneous-Independent Auditor
Compensation—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Fees” in the Proxy Statement and, when the Proxy
insider Participation” in the Proxy Statement and when Statement is filed, will be incorporated herein by
the Proxy Statement is filed with the Securities and reference.
Exchange Commission will be incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
ITEM15.  EXHIBITS, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES

(1) Cansolidated Financial Statements—consolidated financial statements and related Notes are included in Part [1,
Item 8, and are identified in the Index on Page 19,

(2} Consolidated Financial Schedule:

PAGE
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms on Supplementary Information. .............. 42
Consolidated Supplemental Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ... ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 43

All other schedules are omitted since they are not applicable, not required, or the required information is included in
the financial statements or notes thereto.

The following exhibits accompany our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10.2  Sixth Amendment to amended and restated Credit and Security Agreement, Amended and Restated
Revolving Note between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota National Association.

10.3  Seventh Amendment to amended and restated Credit and Security Agreement, Amended and Restated
Revolving Note between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota National Association.

23.1 Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP.

31.1  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a 14(a) and Rule 15d 14(a), promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rufe 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following exhihits are incorporated by reference to exhibits accompanying our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004,

10.1  Fifth Amendment to amended and restated Credit and Security Agreement, Amended and Restated
Revolving Note between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota National Association.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NORTECH SYSTEMS INCORPORATED

March 8, 2007 By: /s! RICHARD G. WASIELEWSKI

Richard G. Wasielewski
Chief Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer

March 8, 2007 By: /sl MicHAEL J. DEGEN

Michael J. Degen
President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated have signed this report.

March 8, 2007 fs! MICHAEL J. DEGEN

Michael J. Degen
President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

March 8, 2007 Isf MyroN KUNIN

Myron Kunin
Chairman and Director

March 8, 2007 /s! RICHARD W. PERKINS

Richard W. Perkins,
Director

March 8, 2007 /st C. TRENT RILEY

C. Trent Riley,
Director

March 8, 2007 Is! KEN LARSON

Ken Larson,
Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

DESCRIPTIONS OF EXHIBITS

10.2

10.3

23.1
31.1

31.2

32.1

Sixth Amendment to amended and restated Credit and Security Agreement, Amended and Restated
Revolving Note between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota National Association.

Seventh Amendment to amended and restated Credit and Security Agreement, Amended and Restated
Revolving Note between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota National Association.

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promuigated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement (Nos. 33-80906 and 33-66246) of Nortech
Systems Incorporated on Form S-8 of our report dated March 7, 2007 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Nortech Systems Incorporated for the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 7, 2007



Exhibit 31.1

Certification

I, Michael J. Degen, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nortech Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a)

b)

)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fisca! quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’'s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of

directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal cantrol aver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 8, 2007 By: /s/ MICHAEL J. DEGEN

Michael J. Degen
Chief Executive Officer
Nortech Systems Incorporated




EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification

|, Richard G. Wasielewski, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nortech Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controis
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particutarly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in the
report cur conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financiat reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reparting which are ‘
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and |

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or cther employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. |

Date: March 8, 2007 By: /s/ RICHARD G. WASIELEWSK]
Richard G. Wasielewski
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael J. Degen, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Nortech Systemns Incorporated on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the
financial condition and results of operations of Nortech Systems Incorporated.

By: /s/ MICHAEL J. DEGEN
Michael J. Degen
Chief Executive Officer
Nortech Systems Incorporated

I, Richard G. Wasielewski, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Nortech Systems Incorporated on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the
financial condition and results of operations of Nortech Systems Incorporated.

By: /s/ RICHARD G. WASIELEWSKI
Richard G. Wasielewski
Chief Financial Officer
Nortech Systems Incorporated




COMPARATIVE STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’'s Common Stock for the last five
years with the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the cumulative total return of a peer group
index (the “Peer Group™} constructed by the Company for the same periods. The graph assumes the initial investment of
$100 in the Company’s Common Stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index, and the Peer Group on December 31, 2001
assuming dividend reinvestment.
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The Peer Group consists of the following companies in the electronic manufacturing services industry: Key Tronic
Corporation, Nortech Systems Inc., SigmaTron International Inc., Simclar Inc., and the SMTC Corporation. The results of
the Peer Group are weighted based on the total market capitalization.
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